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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its
accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Asian Capital Resources
(Holdings) Limited collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited for the purpose of giving information with regard to
Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited. The directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best
of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement in this report misleading;
and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived
at after due and careful consideration and are founded on
bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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Chairman’s Statement

| am pleased to present the annual results of Asian Capital
Resources (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2010.

Shareholders and potential investors have been advised on 2
November 2009 that the Board had initiated of the closure of
the business operations of Ever-OK International Forwarding
Co., Limited (PRC), which operates the Group’s logistics
division. The Board has taken the view that this action is in
line with the Board’s strategy of closing all non-profitable
operations of the Group, whilst focusing more resources on
the Company’s IPTV division.

With the closure of the business operations of Ever-OK
International Forwarding Co., Limited (PRC), the Board is now
looking towards increasing the asset base of the Group and
enhancing its present operations through the research and
future development of potential project investments which
will bring synergy between the Group’s existing IPTV division,
whilst drawing on the knowledge the Board has acquired
through the operations of the Group’s logistics division.

Regarding the IPTV division, recently South Pearl Limited,
the subsidiary of the Company which is owned as to 55%
by the Company, has been negotiating agreements with
other third parties for the provision of advertising slots and
services which will take effect once the direct IPTV services
become operational. To date, South Pearl Limited has already
concluded an agreement for the provision of RMB 5,000,000
of advertising airspace to Guangdong Tao Lue Advertising
Company Limited. In addition, Guangzhou Wavecom
Communications and Advertising Limited, which is wholly-
owned as to 100% by the Company, intends to enter into
servicing agreements with Guangdong E.Trust Information
Investment Co Ltd (“Yung Shing”) whereby the Company’s
IPTV division will provide internet protocol value added
services to Yung Shing’s subscribers, in return for which
the IPTV division will receive an agreed percentage of Yung
Shing’s revenue based on the value added services provided.

Whilst the Group’s IPTV division has been slow to develop
and realize the expected returns for the Group, the Board has
been very actively involved in developing the IPTV division such
that it has sufficient assets and a sufficient level of operations
which the Board is of the view delivers present, and more
positively looking forward, should deliver future enhanced
benefits for the Company’s shareholders.
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Apart from the aforementioned operations, in relation to the
intended establishment of a corporate finance division that
will operate within the Group, the Board is planning to devote
more time and resources towards the establishment and future
expansion of the provision of financial consultancy services
to business sectors that complement and have synergy with
the household consumers and media services that the IPTV
division of the Company is presently pursuing.

During the past year, there was a 73.96% decrease in the
turnover of the Group for 2010, and the loss for the year
increased from HK$71,469,000 for 2009 to HK$115,502,000
for 2010. The substantial increase in loss for the year is
mainly attributable to the substantial provision made for
asset impairment loss in respect of the intangible assets of
the Group and the substantial provision made for deferred
income tax expense which would be generated from the
intangible assets of the Group. Whilst the decrease in turnover
of the Group can be attributed to the closure of the business
operations of the logistics division, the Board is confident that
having significantly reduced it’s the Group’s operating costs,
and having disposed of the non-profit making subsidiaries
within the Group, that with a more positive economic climate in
2011, with the revenue the Group hopes to generate from the
IPTV division, and with the research and future development
of potential project investments that bring synergy between
the IPTV division and the knowledge drawn from the operation
of the logistics division, that the Group will be able to achieve
profitability within the near future.

On behalf of the Board, we would also like to take this
opportunity to thank the Group’s clients, suppliers, vendors,
banks, business partners, consultants and shareholders for
their support and trust generously given to the Group. The
Board also expresses gratitude to the management and staff
for their work and dedication during the past years.

Xie Xuan
Chairman
Hong Kong, 30 March 2011

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover and Loss from Operations

The total turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 was approximately HK$7,133,000 (2009:
HK$27,395,000) which was decreased by approximately
73.96% as compared to that of the previous financial year. The
main reason for the significant decrease in the total turnover
of the Group was a result of the initiation of the closure in
November 2009 of Ever-OK International Forwarding Co. Ltd
(“Ever-OK”), which owned and operated the Group’s logistics
division.

The Group’s gross profit margin increased from 19.83% for
the year ended 31 December 2009 to 76.45% for the current
period. The increase in gross profit margin is due to the
closure of the non-profitable operations in Hong Kong and
the PRC, which operated in the logistics industry which has
a comparatively lower gross profit margin as compared to
the Group’s other continuing operations namely the internet
protocol television (“IPTV”) division’s operations.

The audited consolidated loss from operations for the
year ended 31 December 2010 was approximately
HK$115,502,000 which has increased by 61.61% compared
with the corresponding period last year, HK$71,469,000. The
substantial increase in loss for the year is mainly attributable
to the substantial provision being made for asset impairment
loss in respect of the intangible assets of the Group of
approximately HK$55,023,000, and the substantial provision
being made for deferred income tax expense which would
be generated from the intangible assets of the Group of
approximately HK$22,368,000.

The intangible assets of the Group are comprised of the IPTV
permit, namely the “Broadcast of Audio-Video Program On
Web Permit” ({5 B A8 EHERIZET B 5T A 8) (the “Permit”)
currently held by Guangzhou Wavecom Communications and
Advertising Limited (“Guangzhou Wavecom”). Guangzhou
Wavecom is a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
possession of the Permit allows Guangzhou Wavecom'’s
subsidiary South Pearl Limited, to operate the Group’s IPTV
division in the greater southern China region. The Permit
has been granted by Guangzhou Television Broadcast
Microwave General Station (“Guangzhou Television Station”) to
Guangzhou Wavecom. Possession of the Permit allows, and is
a prerequisite to South Pearl Limited being able to act as the
exclusive service provider of Guangzhou Television Station’s
programmes, advertising and other IPTV services within the
greater southern China region. The Permit commenced on 1
October 2007 and will expire on 30 September 2015.
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The substantial provisions have been made for asset
impairment loss on the Permit and for deferred income tax
expense which would be generated from the Permit, as
the Board, after having had regard for the applicable Hong
Kong accounting standards which should be applied to the
Company’s 2010 annual results, has determined that based
on HKAS 36 and HKAS 12, respectively, substantial provisions
should be made for asset impairment loss on the Permit and
for deferred income tax expense which would be generated
from the Permit.

The Board notes that the substantial provisions for an asset
impairment loss and the deferred income tax expense are non-
cash items. Despite recording a substantial increase in the
loss of the Group, which is mainly due to the aforementioned
substantial provisions which have been recorded in the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s businesses
and operations have made positive contributions to the Group
in 2010 and these aforementioned provisions are not expected
to have a material adverse effect on the Group’s cash flows.

The Board does not expect that the Company’s ability to
continue to operate as a going concern will be affected by
the aforesaid substantial provisions being made for asset
impairment loss and deferred taxation expenses on the
Permit. With the continued financial support of the Company’s
immediate holding company, and with the positive revenue
streams which have been and continue to be produced by
the Group’s IPTV division (as discussed in greater detail
below), the Board is confident that, and looking forward to the
forthcoming quarters of 2011, that the Company should not
encounter difficulties with its ability to continue to operate as a
going concern.

Financial cost

The financial cost of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 was approximately HK$2,476,000 (2009:
HK$680,000) which was increased by approximately 264.12%
as compared to that of the same period of last year.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s borrowing
consists of an amount due to the Company’s immediate
holding company of HK$19,385,000, and an amount due to a
director of HK$6,033,000. The Group had a cash balance of
approximately HK$6,504,000 (2009: HK$1,863,000).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group continues to adopt a prudent treasury policy to
maintain its cash balance either in Hong Kong Dollars, or in
the local currencies of the operating subsidiaries, maintaining
a minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks.

The issued share capital of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2010 has increased from HK$96,341,799 as at 31
December 2009 to HK$98,841,799.

Gearing Ratio

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the gearing ratio of
the Group, expressed as a percentage of net debt divided by
the total capital plus net debt, was 217.46% (2009: 95.47%).

Employee and remuneration policies

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group employed
a total of 18 employees (as at 31 December 2009: 28), of
which 4 were located in Hong Kong and the remaining 14
were located in the PRC. The Group’s remuneration policies
are in line with the prevailing market practices and formulated
on the basis of performance and experience of the employees.
The salary and related benefits of the employees are rewarded
on a performance related basis and the general remuneration
structure of the Group is subject to review annually.

Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies

Deregistration and Winding-Up of various Subsidiaries
in the Group

The Board has resolved that, in order to reduce the operating
costs of the Group, those subsidiaries within the Group which
no longer add value to, nor generate any income attributable
to the Group, should be deregistered, or voluntarily wound up.

Those subsidiaries which are currently in the deregistration
process are: Asian Information Investment (Holdings) Limited
(BVI), Asian Information Resources Consultants Limited,
Sinobase Asia Limited, Sino Resource Investments Limited,
Asian Information Resources Techlogic Limited (which is the
immediate holding Company of Ever-OK) and Guangzhou
Shilian Software Technological Co. Limited.

Those subsidiaries which have been deregistered during
the period are: AIR Logistics International Limited (BVI), AIR
Logistics International Holdings Limited, Chinareference.
com Limited, AIR SQW Limited, Explore Limited and Explore
International Limited.
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Those subsidiaries which are currently being voluntarily wound
up are: Asian Information Investment Consulting Limited,
BuyCollection.com Limited, and Myhome Network Limited.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the period under review, the Group sought to further
enlarge its revenue base through the further development of
the Group’s IPTV division which currently provides internet
protocol value added services to the greater southern China
region. The Company has a sufficient level of operations
in its IPTV division and has sufficient assets to operate its
business as a going concern. The Company does not have
any financial difficulties to an extent which may seriously impair
the Company’s ability to continue its business. The Company
also has, in addition to those assets held by the IPTV division,
sufficient assets to operate its business due to the continuing
support of the Company’s immediate holding company.

The Board, looking forward, is contemplating transferring
the investment operations of the Group, which will allow the
Company to focus on project investments which will derive
value for the Company’s shareholders, and pave the way
for the Company’s future growth, both in terms of revenue
streams and profits achieved from its business operations.

Having consolidated the control of the Company, through the
restructuring exercise which was completed in May 2010,
wherein Glamour House Limited obtained majority control of
the Company’s immediate holding company Asian Dynamics
International Limited (“Asian Dynamics”), the Board is now
well positioned to pursue other new business pursduits. In fact
Glamour House Limited has been a substantial shareholder
of Asian Dynamics for many years, and the restructuring
exercise, which was completed upon the close of the
mandatory unconditional general offers on 9 July 2010, will
facilitate the Board being able to focus, with further support
from the Company’s ultimate controlling shareholder, the
pursuit of other project investments which the Board is of the
view will derive enhanced benefit to the Company and the
Company’s shareholders.

Such new business pursuits may, should the economic
environment accommodate future development, encompass
the investment into projects that will provide synergy between
the Group’s existing IPTV division, whilst building on the
Board’s knowledge gained through the Company’s logistics
operations.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

RERBERERZMBERAR I : Asian
Information Investment Consulting Limited *

BuyCollection.com Limited 2Myhome Network
Limited °

ET5EER

REREERE - AEEROEBE-THRET
BB EERD B - E— FEAHWAE
o BEMEERRES D BRSSP ERE M
SRR B A e SR (B ARTS AR RE LB
BRERGHEER THNEBKTE - XBEFRRE
EE RN AR EENE - AAR BRLE
AR EFEHSELE 2R EE - utsh -
BT EMEERRG D MAEENEES - B
RARBEEERARNBESS: » WARE
BRAFTMNEERTEIER -

RERK  EFSRILEREBERENKRER
% EEARB A HEHRRBNERARFIK
REFIBENERRE L ARRFHARRW
ANERFEBEFRMSREN O RIIE R -

EB T ZEFRAEKMNEATE
Glamour House Limited§ AN A AR E L
f% 2 A]Asian Dynamics International Limited
([ Asian Dynamics ) 3B EUz sk - WA
ZEAQFESIE BENL - EERA
TORNDRUEERAMMER - SE L -
Glamour House Limited% 3 — & 2 Asian
Dynamicsf=ZEME - MEATH(ERN=Z
—ZTFE L AN ARG EGEEERES
B ENRESTSETREN  EEARAN
BEERBRROE— SR T - EEFEREA
HERE - EF2RANBEEEAEANFRE
&l N EE

ARABABREBZHES (MEBERIRELS
AREBHERND) BRBEINRESTSHESE
B LY RELE IR E S NN RE
X REBRAEMBERRE D R H B
MEREIREIRR o



T -TEER

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Performance of operating divisions
Logistics Division

Shareholders and potential investors were advised by the
Board in the Company’s announcement dated 2 November
2009 that the Board was informed by the management of
Ever-OK that Ever-OK was not operating as a profitable entity,
and that the achievement of profitability in the foreseeable
future was not a realistic possibility. Given that information,
and given the Board’s desire to focus on the Company’s IPTV
division, the Board determined that it was in the best interests
of the Company, and the Company’s shareholders as a whole,
to initiate the closure of the business operations of Ever-OK.

The Board is of the view that the closure of the business
operations of Ever-OK will not have an adverse effect on the
Group, rather such closure, will allow the Group to reduce
its operating costs, and will lead it is anticipated towards the
Group achieving profitability in future periods, through the
reduction of further capital expenditure and reallocation of
such capital to the Group’s IPTV division and future project
investments the Group intends to engage in.

After the initiation of the closure of Ever-OK, the Group’s
logistics division has not derived any revenue attributable to
the Group since 31 December 2009. The Board expects to
finalise the closure of Ever-OK within the forthcoming reporting
periods. The Board has been advised by the management
of Ever-OK that the closure of all the business operations
and branches has now been effected, save for one branch of
Ever-OK which has outstanding tax liabilities that need to be
resolved prior to its closure. Therefore the Board is advised
that Ever-OK is in the very final stages of the closure of its
business operations.

The Board does not foresee the Company having to outlay
any further capital in effecting the closure of Ever-OK in the
forthcoming periods. Whilst the Board, has for all intents and
purposes, effected the closure of Ever-OK, it does not intend
that the Group will depart from the logistics industry entirely
and, as stated above, is presently researching and developing
potential project investments which will bring synergy between
the Group’s existing IPTV division, whilst drawing on the
knowledge the Board has acquired through the operations of
the Group’s logistics division. The Board is now considering
acquiring a project investment of this nature. That is an
acquisition of a project which will align both the IPTV division
with the Board’s knowledge of the logistics industry.
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Information Technology Division

For the twelve months ended 31 December 2010, the Group’s
revenue from its IPTV division was composed of the provision
of technology and upgrades, contents and high-definition
(*HD”) value added services to the customers of established
internet and network services providers which South Pearl
Limited (“South Pearl”) is currently in partnership with, which
amounted to approximately HK$7,133,000.

As to South Pearl’s provision of direct IPTV services, having
established and upgraded its necessary networks, South Pearl
expects that it will launch the provision of direct IPTV services
with associated value-added services in full force in the next
one to two years, and that the expected potential subscribers
to the proposed direct IPTV services to be provided, upon
completion of the development and implementation of this
technology platform, is expected to be no less than 50,000
subscribers.

South Pearl is now also actively negotiating further agreements
with other third parties for the provision of advertising slots
and services (“Downstream Services”), the revenue from
which will be derived once the direct IPTV services network
issues are addressed and the direct IPTV services are
provided to South Pearl’s potential customer base for the
receipt of direct IPTV services. As of the date of this report, no
such further agreements have been finalized as negotiations
are still ongoing as to the terms of the intended provision
of Downstream Services. As to its intended provision of
Downstream Services, South Pearl has already concluded an
agreement for the provision of RMB5,000,000 of advertising
airspace to Guangdong Tao Lue Advertising Company
Limited (ENEREESERAF) (“Toshe”). The Board, with
regard to the proposed further advertising agreements to be
agreed, such as the Toshe advertising agreement, expects
that revenue from these proposed agreements will be realized
upon the provision of the direct IPTV services to South Pearl’s
potential consumer base, at which time the Group’s revenue is
expected to increase.

In addition the company known as Guangdong E.Trust
Information Investment Co Ltd (BR&AZEEHREBRA
7)) (“Yung Shing”) is an internet services provider (“ISP”)
based in the Guangzhou region which provides ISP services
to its subscriber base which the Board has been advised
generates no less approximately RMB60,000,000 in revenue
for Yung Shing on average per annum. In the Group’s usual
and ordinary course of business Guangzhou Wavecom
Communications and Advertising Limited (“Guangzhou
Wavecom”), which is wholly-owned as to 100% by the

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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Company, intends to enter into servicing agreements with
Yung Shing whereby Guangzhou Wavecom will provide
internet protocol value added services to Yung Shing’s
subscribers, in return for which Guangzhou Wavecom will
receive an agreed percentage of Yung Shing’s revenue based
on the value added services provided. The Board expects
that these servicing agreements, if concluded, will generate
value added revenue of approximately RMB10,000,000
to RMB15,000,000 for 2011-2012. As of the date of this
report, no such servicing agreements have been finalized as
negotiations are still ongoing as to the terms of the intended
provision of the valued added services to Yung Shing.

Looking forward to the forthcoming year, Guangzhou
Wavecom is seeking to enter into agreements with other
ISP providers to further expand the revenue that the IPTV
division expects to generate from the provision of internet
protocol value added services to the established subscriber
bases of other ISP providers. In terms of the revenue derived
by Guangzhou Wavecom, 100% of this revenue is directly
incorporated into to the condensed consolidated accounts of
the Group, given the fact that the Company owns Guangzhou
Wavecom as to 100%.

The Board is of the view that the key competitive strength of
the Group, with regards to the IPTV division, is its exclusive
right of usage of Broadcast of Audio-Video Program On Web
Permit ({5 8/ E 1R FEE0 B FF Al &) (the “Permit”) granted
from Guangzhou Television Broadcast Microwave General
Station (/N EREER MUK ). To date, the Group’s IPTV
division has secured the necessary operating licenses and has
fulfilled the necessary research, development and technology
investment, such as an agreement with Microsoft, to position
itself for the provision of direct IPTV services to the greater
southern China region.

The Board considers that the diversification process which
the IPTV industry in the southern China region is undergoing
justifies the slow pace of the development of the Group’s IPTV
division. In fact recently the authorities in China have been
implementing a convergence process whereby three of the
existing telecommunications networks will be incorporated
into one regime. The new regime, and the newly enacted
regulations, will mainly be related to the implementation of
a regime whereby the Guangzhou Broadcasting Bureau
has more input into the telecommunications industry. The
Permit accommodates and accords with the proposed new
regulatory regime, which further justifies the value of the
Permit.
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The Board, through its adoption of a prudent and cautious
approach to the proposed new regulatory regime, is
positioning the Company to take advantage of the new
regulations, once they are enacted. As the Permit meets the
requirements of the proposed new regulations, saving any
unforeseen amendments to the new regulatory regime, the
IPTV division will be well placed to take immediate advantage
of the benefits afforded by the new regulatory regime once it
comes into effect.

Whilst the Board has been adopting a prudent and cautious
approach with regard to further investing, developing and
expanding the Group’s IPTV division, the Board has been very
actively involved in developing the IPTV division such that it
has sufficient assets and a sufficient level of operations which
the Board is of the view delivers present, and more positively
looking forward, should deliver future enhanced benefits for
the Company’s shareholders.

Financial Consultancy

Apart from the aforementioned operations, the Group
continues to research, develop and explore investment
opportunities which are strategic to its business operations
and which will contribute significantly to the return of the
Company’s shareholders.

With the acquisition of Vega International Group Limited, which
is principally engaged in the provision of services in corporate
finance and investment, project planning and development,
technology project brokerage services, corporate development
services, management consulting and post-acquisition
advisory and professional management services, the Group is
researching, developing and exploring further opportunities for
development in the corporate finance sector which will further
contribute to the current revenue streams generated by the
Group.

In relation to the corporate finance sector, the Board is
planning to devote more time and resources towards
expanding the provision of financial consultancy services to
business sectors that complement and have synergy with
the household consumers and media services that the IPTV
division of the Company is presently pursuing. The Board
envisages that such services, if agreed, will encompass the
establishment of financial advisory offices which will provide
investment, financial and project management advise to other
companies. In terms of these consultancy services, they will be
negotiated in the normal course of business and shareholders
will be kept informed of this division as it progresses.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

The material litigation and contingent liabilities affecting the
Group as at 31 December 2010 are set out in note 33 in the
accompanying notes to the financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant subsequent events of the Group are
set out in note 34 to the financial statements.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Xie Xuan
Chairman

Mr. Xie, aged 41, joined the Group in 2002. Mr. Xie holds
directorships in various subsidiaries of the Group. He has
over 18 years of successful investment and management
experience in the areas of property and logistics in the
People’s Republic of China. He graduated from Jinan
University, the PRC with a degree in International Economics.

Mr. Qiu Yue

Mr. Qiu, aged 41, joined the Group in October 2008. Mr. Qiu
graduated from Zhongshan University, the People’s Republic
of China in 1991, with a Bachelor of Arts degree. Mr. Qiu
had worked in the advertising business for more than 11
years and was the general manager of Guangzhou Wavecom
Communication and Advertising Limited from 1992 to 2006,
and is now the general manager of South Pearl Limited, both
companies having been acquired by the Company on 24
December 2007.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond
Vice Chairman

Mr. Lo, aged 58, is the Principal of an investment and
corporate finance firm with offices in London and Hong Kong.
Trained as a Chartered Accountant in England & Wales, he
also qualified as a Canadian Chartered Accountant. Mr. Lo
is now licensed as a Responsible Officer by the Securities
& Futures Commission of Hong Kong for providing Type
6 (corporate finance) advisory. He has extensive expertise
and experience in international corporate finance, mergers &
acquisitions, cross-border direct investments, with emphases
in lifestyle, real estate and hospitality sectors.

He held directorate level or strategist positions with
multinational financial and emerging companies internationally.
Besides the Company, he currently serves as the non-
executive chairman of the Board of Luk Fook Holdings
International Limited (stock code: 0590), and as an
independent non-executive director of Shanghai Zendai
Property Limited (stock code 0755). All of these companies
are listed in Hong Kong.
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Mr. Lo graduated from the University of Wisconsin — Madison
in business administration and read law at the University of
Hong Kong and at the Universities in California. He also holds
various post-graduate degrees or professional designations
in accountancy, corporate finance, real estate and hospitality
disciplines.

Mr. Andrew James Chandler

Mr. Chandler, aged 38, joined the Group in August 2006. He
was admitted as a barrister of the High Court of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 1998, and as a barrister
and solicitor of the High Court of New Zealand in 1996. Mr.
Chandler has over 12 years experience in the legal field. Mr.
Chandler graduated from Victoria University in Wellington,
New Zealand with a Bachelor of Laws, and Bachelor of Arts
degrees. Mr. Chandler also has obtained a Post Graduate
Certificate in Law from City University, Hong Kong, and a
Graduate Diploma in Business Studies (Finance) from Massey
University in New Zealand.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Wu Jixue

Mr. Wu, aged 65, holds a Master degree in Economics. He is
currently a professor, guest lecturer and visiting scholar at a
number of colleges and universities in the PRC and abroad.
He has published more than 262 papers and 18 books in the
areas of economics, finance and management.

Dr. Feng Ke

Dr. Feng, aged 39, joined the Group in October 2008. Dr.
Feng holds a PHD in theorectic economics from the Beijing
University, the People’s Republic of China. Presently he is
the department head and researcher of Real Estates Finance
Research Center, of the Beijing University Economics Faculty.
Dr. Feng is an independent compliance advisor in the publicly
listed company Sky Land Resources Limited, and is an
independent director in the publicly listed company Guang
Yu Development Limited, both companies being listed in the
People’s Republic of China.
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Mr. Zhang Daorong

Mr. Zhang, aged 39, is a Certified Public Accountant and
Certified Tax Agent in the PRC. He holds a Bachelor degree in
Economics and a Master degree in Business Administration.
He has over 17 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and taxation. He is currently a project manager in a firm of
certified public accountants in the PRC.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Lum Pak Sum
Company Secretary

Mr. Lum, aged 50 , holds a master degree in business
administration from the University of Warwick, United
Kingdom, and a Bachelor of Laws (LLB) (Honors) degree
from the University of Wolverhampton, United Kingdom. He
is currently a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (HKICPA) and of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom. Mr. Lum
has over 18 years’ experience in the financial field, the money
market and capital market.

Mr. Kong Yeuk Hon, John
Senior Accountant

Mr. Kong, aged 52, joined the Group in October 2005. Mr.
Kong holds a Master of Science Degree in Applied Accounting
and Finance from the Baptist University of Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Kong has over 11 years experience in
commercial accounting field.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) submit their
report together with the audited financial statements of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and profit/(loss) before
taxation for the year ended 31 December 2010 by principal
activities is as follows:
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Profit/(loss)
before
taxation
Turnover  BRBiATH,
BEE (§518)
HK$ 000 HK$’000
FHET FET
By Principal activities: REEEBES
IPTV services HEREARRYG 7,133 (83,888)
Logistics services Wi AR S - 1,048
7,133 (82,840)

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and loss before taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2010 by geographical areas is
as follows:
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Loss before

Turnover taxation
=] B¥ipikSE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

By geographical areas: Zi@RE S
Hong Kong a5 - (9,000)
The PRC F 7,133 (84,134)
7,133 (93,134)
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The loss for the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 37 to 40 of this Annual Report.

The Directors do not recommend payment of a dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009: Nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 128.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to a specific mandate granted by the Company’s
shareholders at the Company’s extraordinary general meeting
held on 4 October 2007, the Company granted 97,840,073
share options (the “Share Options”) entitling the holders of the
Share Options to subscribe for 97,840,073 ordinary shares at
the exercise price of HK$0.275 per share.

As at 31 December 2010, there were outstanding 72,840,073
Share Options that fall to be exercised at the exercise price of
HK$0.275 per share.

The Company had a share option scheme, under which it
could grant options to employees of the Group (including
executive directors of the Company) to subscribe for shares
in the Company, subject to a maximum of 10% of the nominal
value of the issued share capital of the Company from time
to time, excluding for this purpose shares issued on exercise
of the options. The Company’s employee share option
scheme commenced on 2 December 1999 and expired on
1 December 2009. The Company does not currently have a
share option scheme in effect.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 11 October 2010 the Company, pursuant to the acquisition
agreement as described in the Company’s circular dated 28
February 2008, issued in aggregate HK$86,349,999 of zero-
coupon convertible notes convertible at the initial Conversion
Price of HK$0.218 per Share with 24-month maturity, in the
amounts of HK$76,272,955 of Convertible Notes were issued
to Asian Dynamics International Limited and approximately
HK$10,077,044 of Convertible Notes were issued to Lucky
Peace Limited.

As at 31 December 2010 there were outstanding and in issue
in aggregate HK$86,349,999 of zero-coupon convertible
notes convertible at the initial Conversion Price of HK$0.218
per Share with 24-month maturity.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASES, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Based on information which is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issuance of this annual
report, the Directors can confirm that at least 25% of the
Company’s total listed issued share capital has at all times
been held by the public, as required by Rule 11.23 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year is set out in note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2010, the Company has no reserves
available for distribution to shareholders (2009: Nil) in
accordance with the applicable laws of the Cayman Islands
and the Company’s articles of association.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year
attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are
as follows:

Sales
the largest customer 43.49%
five largest customers combined 100%
Purchases
the largest supplier 84.88%
five largest suppliers combined 100%

To the best knowledge of the Directors, neither the Directors,
their associates, nor any shareholders who own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and/or five
largest suppliers during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Qiulin (resigned on 18 March 2011)
Mr. Qiu Yue

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Andrew James Chandler

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Jixue
Mr. Zhang Daorong
Dr. Feng Ke

In accordance with Article 87(1) of the articles of association
of the Company, Mr. Lo Mun Lam, Raymond (vice-chairman)
and Mr. Wu Jixue shall retire from office by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors to be proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the
Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No Directors had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company or any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or subsisted during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Particulars of retirement benefit schemes are set out in note
4(o)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.

CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions disclosed in note 28 to the
accompanying consolidated financial statements constitute
the connected transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

The non-executive directors of the Company had reviewed the
connected transactions of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2010 and have confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

() inthe ordinary and usual course of business of Group;

either on normal commercial terms or, if there are no
sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favorable than those available to or from independent
third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
the transactions;

(i) on terms that are fair and reasonable and in interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv) the aggregate amount of each of these transactions
falls within the de minimis exemption for the connected
transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

(A)

Interests and short positions of the Directors in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and chief executive of the
Company in the Shares, underlying Shares, or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Cap. 571, (“SFQO”) which (a) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein;
or (c) were required, pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”) contained in the GEM Listing Rules, to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Ordinary Shares of
HKS$0.10 each (the “Shares”) of the Company

el
(A) EFRAAERLEEEEORS - 48

Bkt RiESH 2B RXE

RZZE—ZEF+-_A=+—8 "  AQ7F
BEENTHERR ARG KA EE
(EHEAFBHMEEED - BE571ZEXV
E2B) Z Bty ~ AR S ESH T A (a)/B
BIEEEF R EEGIEXVIETNMEDE
MERRR Rz NAR (B
RIBEEH R E GO3Z F 56O R e
EEEA 2R NAR) (D) BEREE
%5 K B E 5D 58 352 {5 AR 8 A sX I FTHE &
MRz EREAE  s(c)BIREAIZE
R ETRBIATE EHBEITAESETE
£ SHIZEESTAI([ZESFR] ) e R
NE| MRz e RORB T

() RELGEHREE10/ETLEE
BRE)ZIFE

Number of issued shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FRERTROGBE  FHREGHE
Percentage of
the Company’s
issued Shares
as at
31 December
Through 2010
spouse EEATR
Directly or minor Through —F-8E
beneficially children controlled Beneficiary +ZH=+-H
owned BREES corporation of a trust Total ZE¥TR#E
EREQHE KEEFE  EBRTIREE fEREZEA @t Bak
Directors
EZ
Mr. Xie Xuan - - 546,964,782 - 546,964,782 55.34
ABRLE (Note 1)
(1)
Mr. Qiu Yue 15,600,000 - 18,620,436 - 34,220,436 3.46
i (Note 2)
(FtsE2)
15,600,000 - 565585218 - 581,185218 58.80

Note 1: The controlled corporation is Glamour House

Limited, which is accustomed to acting

in

accordance with Mr. Xie Xuan’s instructions who is

its sole director, and which is the beneficial ow
as to 67.18% of Asian Dynamics Internatio
Limited.

Note 2: The controlled corporation is Lucky Peace Limit

ner
nal

ed,

which is incorporated in Samoa, and which is

100% wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu Yue.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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(i) Long Positions in the Underlying Shares

Long positions in the unlisted zero-coupon
convertible redeemable notes with 24 month maturity
issued on 11 October 2010 (the “2010 Convertible
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i) HEMRG 2
EARNAR-F—FE+A+—H
BTA BB AAEAZFETES
AR AR — T T AR

Notes”) of the Company WEE )2 iFe

Percentage of

the Company’s

Amount of issued Shares

2010 as at

Convertible 31 December

Notes 2010

(HK$) EERAT

B85 Numberof R-B—FfF

Capacity and iR EiE underlying +-HA=+—H

Name of Director nature of interest 288 Shares ZEBETiRG

EEME BipRiERME (#&m)  1HEARKEE Btk

Mr. Xie Xuan Interest of a controlled 76,272,955 349,875,940 35.40
S o corporation (Note 1)
iErE R (1)

Mr. Qiu Yue Interest of a controlled 10,077,044 46,224,972 4.68
BB A& corporation (Note 2)

RmEE s (M 2)

Note 1: The controlled corporation is Glamour House
Limited, which is accustomed to acting in
accordance with Mr. Xie Xuan’s instructions who is
its sole director, and which is the beneficial owner
as to 67.18% of Asian Dynamics International
Limited.

Note 2: The controlled corporation is Lucky Peace Limited,
which is incorporated in Samoa, and which is
100% wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu Yue.

Holders of the 2010 Convertible Notes are entitled to
elect to convert 2010 Convertible Notes into Shares
at the conversion price of HK$0.218 per Share until
10 October 2012.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests
or short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(B) Interests and short positions of the Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2010, so far as was known to the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, the following
persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have,
an interest or short position in the Shares and underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO, were as follows:

(i) Long Positions in the Shares

(B) EERFERFATZIRG - HEAKRG R
AHZERRRE

R-Z—FE+-A=1+—0 AR
AEERTHERAA - AT AL (A2
AEFRTRERBIN) R RARRIRR
PR ER - SR AT E ERA IR R
% R B 1 DI BXVEP B2 R 35 BB R A
ARBBEZREARMT -

() RRHEZEFE

Percentage of

the Company’s
issued Shares
as at
31 December
2010
ERAT
R-T—-FTf
Numberof +Z-HA=+—H
Name of Shareholder Capacity shares ZBETRG
B EHE 5 BRHEE B
Glamour House Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 546,964,782 55.34
(Note 1)
Ry rE R ()
Mr. Chu Yat Hong Interest of a controlled corporation 546,964,782 55.34
K—MEtE (Note 2)
R rE R (fE2)
Asian Dynamics International Limited Beneficial owner 546,846,132 55.33
BEREAAN
Lucky Peace Limited (Note 3) Beneficial Owner 18,620,436 1.88

(BIzE3)

ESHAA

Note 1: The controlled corporation is Asian Dynamics
International Limited, which is beneficially owned as
to 67.18% by Glamour House Limited.

Note 2: The controlled corporation is Glamour House
Limited, which is beneficially owned as to
90% by Mr. Chu Yat Hong, and which is the
beneficial owner as to 67.18% of Asian Dynamics

International Limited.

Note 3: Lucky Peace Limited, which is incorporated in
Samoa, is 100% wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu Yu, who
is an executive director of the Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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(i) Long Positions in the Underlying Shares

Long positions in the 2010 Convertible Notes of the
Company

Name of Substantial Capacity and

T -TEER

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FEEHS

(i) RIEFEREZITFE
RAEARF] = FE—FFJRRELZ

HE
Percentage of
the Company’s
Amount of issued Shares
2010 as at
Convertible 31 December
Notes 2010
(HK$) EEAT]

—E-FF Number of HR=-T—TF
R AR IR underlying +=B=+—H

Shareholder nature of interest ZeH Shares ZBEE¥1THE#
FERFEZRE S RigEm s (&) +HERGEE [E);)74
Asian Dynamics Beneficial Owner 76,272,955 349,875,940 35.40
International Limited ~ Ez5¥EH A
Glamour House Limited Interest of a controlled 76,272,955 349,875,940 35.40
corporation (Note 1)
RyEEE R (1)
Mr. Chu Yat Hong Interest of a controlled 76,272,955 349,875,940 35.40
K—fnscsE corporation (Note 2)
YR EE R (MisE 2)
Lucky Peace Limited Beneficial Owner 10,077,044 46,224,972 4.68

(Note 3) EnEAA
(MI7E3)

Note 1: The controlled corporation is Asian Dynamics
International Limited, which is beneficially owned as
to0 67.18% by Glamour House Limited.

Note 2: The controlled corporation is Glamour House
Limited, which is beneficially owned as to
90% by Mr. Chu Yat Hong, and which is the
beneficial owner as to 67.18% of Asian Dynamics
International Limited.

Note 3: Lucky Peace Limited, which is incorporated in
Samoa, is 100% wholly-owned by Mr. Qiu Yue,
who is an executive director of the Company.

Holders of the 2010 Convertible Notes are entitled to
elect to convert 2010 Convertible Notes into Shares
at the conversion price of HK$0.218 per Share until
10 October 2012.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, no
persons, (other than the Directors and chief executive
of the Company, whose interests are set out under the
heading “Interests and short positions of the Directors
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations” above,) had
registered an interest or short position in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company that
was required to be recorded under Section 336 of the
SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the period were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
or debentures in the Company or any other body corporate
granted to any Directors or their respective spouse or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their respective spouse or minor children to
acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the
Company or their respective associates had an interest in a
business which competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group nor any conflicts of
interest which has or may have with the Group.

MANAGEMENT SHAREHOLDERS

As far as the Directors are aware of, other than Asian
Dynamics International Limited, Glamour House Limited, Mr.
Chu Yat Hong, Mr. Xie Xuan, Mr. Qiu Yue, and Lucky Peace
Limited, as disclosed above, there was no other person as at
31 December 2010 who was directly or indirectly interested in
5% or more of the shares then in issue of the Company and
who was able, as a practicable matter, to direct or influence
the management of the Company.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been
audited by Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited. Pan-China (H.K.)
CPA Limited retire and offer themselves for re-appointment as
auditors of the Company at the next annual general meeting of
the Company.

By Order of the Board
Xie Xuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
a high standard of corporate governance. The Board
recognizes that such commitment is essential in upholding
the accountability and transparency and to achieve a balance
of interests between the shareholders, customers, creditors,
employees as well as other stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

To ensure compliance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules, the Board will continue to
monitor and revise the Company Code to bring our corporate
governance practices in line with the changes in the
environment and requirements of the Code.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all the provisions of the Code, for the year ended 31
December 2010, except:

()  under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and
chief executive officer should be clearly established and
set out in writing. The Company has set out in written
terms the responsibilities between the chairman and chief
executive officer. At present, Mr. Xie Xuan, the chairman
of the Company, also undertakes the responsibilities of
the chief executive officer until a replacement for the chief
executive officer is found. The Company considers that
under the supervision of its Board and its Independent
Non-executive Directors, a balancing mechanism exists
so that the interests of the shareholders are adequately
and fairly represented.

(i) under code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. None of the existing Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from the code provision.
However, all the Non-executive Directors of the Company
are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company.

(i) under code provision E.1.2 of the Code, the chairman
of the Board should attend the annual general meeting
to answer questions at the annual general meeting.
The Chairman of the Company, Mr. Xie Xuan, had not
attended the Company’s annual general meeting for 2010
due to other business commitments.

ALl A~

ﬁ:\%ﬁ_‘\\AfF& [==]

$ 77¥K§%ﬁﬁaiﬁiiﬁ BIRENTEE

c BEEERARSABEHBHEMERER
ﬁ M&aﬁk% P EREA-EERH
A BA B = FER R o

g EEaTal

BRI AIZIR - AIHR 15 B0 0 %
EAEATAFA) - EFRBEERER

EHTRARFA - REARTODEE AR
AEHOBCRFHNES -

EERR ARARBE_ZT-ZTF+_A
=t—HLEFEAR  —BEETTRNAAER
E  METIIERS

() REBETRA2MERZRE - EFEETHAE
BZBERZ O  TRHE— ARE-
If@iﬂﬂ(é@ﬁZF‘aﬁE@E‘&Eﬁlﬁ/f“
RELAEESE - AARDKEED
HEIFRTHAIBE - fiﬁvzﬁﬂ GIES
[ERIE e AR RETHRAR ZBE
BEERGBITHARZERAERL - &
RARR EFQNBIFATESFZ
EBRMELRERY - SIREFNEFNA
?E /_\\/E’EBEE

(i) BIEBETRIALVGEZHE  ERTESFE
EIETEMH  WABREMT - ARFAZ
REFPTESUEIETEH  FitiE
B 1R 8 ST AMESCZ R TE © AT+ IRIBEAR
NAIZHEBER  FTBEARRIIENITE
EHERREAFT RS FRESR -

iy BETHEI2EZET BEFEXR
AHERRBFARE  TRE EOERE
e AMARREFRHBLERBERRE
HEMER  ReEHEARAR-_T—F
FZBRERAFRSE -

TNEE (28%) ARAR

29



30

Annual Report 2010

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
B EEARE

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings
as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as
the code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the
Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
all the required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2010.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for managing the Company on behalf
of the shareholders. The Board is of the view that it is the
Directors’ responsibility to create value for the shareholders
as a whole and safeguard the best interests of the Company
and the shareholders by discharging its duties in a dedicated,
diligent and prudent manner on the principle of good faith.

The Board comprises a total of seven Directors, with two
executive Directors, namely Mr. Xie Xuan (Chairman), and Mr.
Qiu Yue; two non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lo Mun
Lam, Raymond (Vice-Chairman), and Mr. Andrew James
Chandler; and three independent non-executive Directors
namely Mr. Wu Jixue, Dr. Feng Ke and Mr. Zhang Daorong.

The Board meets at least four times a year with additional
meetings arranged when necessary, to review the financial
performance, results of each quarter, material investments
and other matters of the Group that require the resolution of
the Board. Simultaneous conference calls may be used to
improve attendance when an individual director cannot attend
the meeting in person.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent based on the annual
confirmations received.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee has been established. The
current chairman of the committee is Mr. Wu Jixue, an
independent non-executive Director, and the other member
is Dr. Feng Ke, who is also an independent non-executive
Director, thus all the members of the remuneration committee
are independent non-executive Directors.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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Under the code provision B.1.1, a listed issuer should establish
a remuneration committee with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and duties. The
Company, has established a remuneration committee as
required under the code provision B.1.1.

The role and function of the remuneration committee includes
the determination of the specific remuneration packages of all
executive Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and to make recommendations to the board regarding the
remuneration of non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by
comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities
of the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the
Group and desirability of performance-based remuneration.

During the period under review, no meetings of the
remuneration committee were held.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

No nomination committee was established by the Company
during the year.

The Board of directors considers the past performance,
qualification, general market conditions and the Company’s
articles of association in selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship during the year.

During the period, the board of Directors considered and
resolved that all the existing Directors shall be recommended
to be retained by the Company. Further, in accordance with
the Company’s articles of association (subject to the proposed
amendments at the forthcoming annual general meeting),
except Mr. Xie Xuan, the Company Chairman, those who
have served the Company for more than three years will retire,
and being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

Under code provision A.4.2 of the Corporate Governance
Practices, every Director should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The existing articles of
association of the Company provide that no Director holding
office as chairman shall be subject to retirement by rotation.
Accordingly, as at the date of this report, Mr. Xie Xuan, being
the chairman of the Company, is not subject to retirement by
rotation.

TEREAMS
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has established an audit committee comprising
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Zhang
Daorong, Mr. Wu Jixue and Dr. Feng Ke, and has adopted
terms of reference governing the authorities and duties of the
audit committee. The primary duties of the audit committee
are to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal controls of the Group. The audit committee has
reviewed the draft of this report and has provided advice and
comments thereon.

The attendance record of each member of the Board during
the year under review is set out below:

BERES

ARBIEERAIFR EHHRAISES.28(F 2 47
R BEZEZEE - ERRBE BB
TERER  BRFERSE  BRESELER
HRHEL - W EHEEEEREZ B SRR M
B BERE  BREZEGZEERE RRF
REBAKE 2 WA RIZF AR - &
BLZEECENARSR - LEMIREE

BRER -

I

pua)

ROBEFAREFGNE 2 & HFELHEN
T

Number of meetings
attended/Number
of meetings held
for the year ended
31 December 2010
BE-T-%%
+=A=+—-BiFE

Designation and Name AT R HESHRRE BITEEAE
Audit

Board Committee
BExE BEREEE

Executive Directors BITES

Xie Xuan (Chairman) S () 77 N/ATjiE A

Yang Qiulin TN o/7 N/ATE

Non-executive directors FERITES

Lo Mun Lam, Raymond (vice-chairman) E& &R (5IF/E) 77 N/AT 35

Andrew James Chandler

Independent non-executive

Andrew James Chandler

Directors BIAKPITES
Wu Jixue TR
Zhang Daorong DS EES
Feng Ke SRt

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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7 4/4
5/7 3/4
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The audit committee of the Company is responsible for
considering the appointment of the external auditor and
reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the external
auditor, including whether such non-audit functions could lead
to any potential material adverse effect on the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the total fee paid/
payable in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by
the Company’s external auditor is set out below:

A
TEERRS

AT

ARBEZEZECREZ BIEFBINEZEE K
ERINEZ AP ETT 2B T - B
EZIFRB T e RARESEREMNELES
RN E -

HE_ZT-ZF+_A=+—RHIEFERN K
RALZINEZBEN SRR B NP RIS T
Bkl BRARENT

2010 2009
—E—-FF —EBETNF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHExT FHETT

Types of services R TEsE
Audit services ENZRTE 550,000 550,000
Non-audit services IEEZARTS 50,000 -
600,000 550,000

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR ACCOUNTS

Statements of Directors’ responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements and external auditors’ reporting
responsibilities as set out in the Auditors’ Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Directors have reviewed and are satisfied with their ability
to comply with the policies installed as part of the Group’s
internal control system, including, in particular, financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions. Furthermore, the Directors are satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff
of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions,
and their training programs and budget.

AUDITORS

During the year under review, the performance of the external
auditors of the Group has been reviewed and it is proposed to
reappoint external auditors.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has disclosed all necessary information to the
shareholders and investors in compliance with GEM Listing
Rules and uses a number of formal communications channels
to account to shareholders and investors for the Company.
These include (i) the publication of quarterly and annual
reports; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary general
meeting providing a forum for shareholders of the Company to
raise comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) the
Company replying to the enquires from shareholders timely;
(iv) updated and key information of the Company available
on website of the Company; (v) the Company’s website
offering communication channel between the Company and
its shareholders and investors; and (vi) the Company’s share
registrar in Hong Kong serves the shareholders regarding all
share registration matters.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Company will keep on reviewing its corporate governance
standards on a timely basis and the Board endeavour to take
the necessary actions to ensure compliance with the required
practices and standards including the provisions of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices introduced by the Stock
Exchange.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF
ASIAN CAPITAL RESOURCES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asian
Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 37 to 127, which comprise the consolidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 December
2010, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors’ judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
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by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Fundamental uncertainty relating to the going concern
basis

In forming our opinion, we have considered the adequacy of
the disclosure made in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements regarding the going concern of the Group and the
steps being taken by the directors to improve the position.
The Group had net current liabilities and loss attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$57,305,000
and HK$67,716,000 respectively as at 31 December
2010. The directors of the Company endeavor to improve
the Group’s financial position and had taken measures to
reduce overheads and costs. Furthermore, the directors of
the Company are currently exploring various options, which
include the issue of new shares, in order to provide additional
equity funding to the Group. In addition, the immediate
holding company has agreed to provide continuing financial
support for the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due and
the directors consider the new business operation acquired
previously would generate sufficient working capital to support
the Group’s operations. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon future funding being available and the
continuing financial support given by the immediate holding
company. The consolidated financial statements do not
include any adjustments that would result from the failure to
obtain such future funding or financial support. We consider
that the fundamental uncertainty has been properly disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements and our opinion is not
qualified in this respect.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the Group and the Company’s state of
affairs as at 31 December 2010 and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Tsang Chiu Keung

Practising Certificate Number P04968

20/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167 Des Voeux Road,
Central, Hong Kong,

Hong Kong S.A.R., China

30 March 2011
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A EK S

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-—FT—FF{ -_A=+—HIFE

CONTINUING OPERATIONS JHiEiE& %%
Note 2010 2009
Bi5E —E—-FF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Turnover ] 6(a) 7,133 -
Cost of services BRIS A A (1,680) -
Gross profit EA 5,453 -
Other revenue and net income H ek R A F 58 6(b) 1,591 408
Administrative and operating TTE N B R
expenses (98,750) (61,438)
Loss from operations LB EsIE (91,706) (61,030)
Finance costs & R AR 8 (2,476) (680)
Loss before taxation FREIRIES 1R 9 (94,182) (61,710
Income tax expense FTisRif X 11 (22,368) (106)
Loss for the year from continuing REERGIFEKLE
operations E3 vl (116,550) (61,816)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS R IR
Profit/(loss) for the year from REFRBEKR L
discontinued operations wF (E51E) 12 1,048 (9,653)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AEEEE (115,502) (71,469)
Other comprehensive income: Hib2mEUEs
Exchange difference arising on MEBINETSTES 2
translation of foreign operations [EH =5 (2,184) 1,003
Other comprehensive income for the 7R E H b 2 YR
year, net of tax ($0BRTRIA) (2,184) 1,003
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE AEE2EkEEE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR (117,686) (70,466)
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO: THIALEGEE :
— owners of the Company . YNGIEZ ¥ =N 13 (67,716) (48,942)
- non-controlling interests — JEPE R A R (47,786) (22,527)
(115,502) (71,469)

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= AL Sz
e el R
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-—F—FESA=F—AULFE

Note 2010 2009
Bt —E-FF ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHER FHIT
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE TIANLTESEZE
INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO: WS 4azE -
— owners of the Company B VNGIEZ =N (70,059) (48,223)
— non-controlling interests — IEPE AR RS (47,627) (22,243)
(117,686) (70,466)
HK Cents HK Cents
g3 11 AL
Earnings/(loss) per share: BR&EF(EE) 15
From continuing and discontinued R E L& 275 K%
operations IR PR TS
- Basic — 5K (6.98) (5.08)
— Diluted — 8 N/A A58 H N/A 35
From continuing operations REFEEEETE
- Basic —HA (7.08) (4.08)
— Diluted — 85 N/A FiEH N/A A3 A
From discontinued operations PYERSIR i
- Basic —HAR 0.11 (1.00)
— Diluted —#E 0.07 N/A N3 A

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ira MR R
As at 31 December 2010
R-ZFE—FF+-_A=1+—H

Note 2010 2009
B sE —T-TF T NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - S MR A 16 1,112 1,518
Development costs (RPN 17 - -
Intangible assets B AE 18 89,470 174,913
90,582 176,431
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 REAMEIRERR 20 11,347 9,805
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTHE S 21 6,504 1,863
17,851 11,668
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables H 5 R EAMEMERR 22 74,940 156,929
Tax payable FEF 1B 216 226
75,156 157,155
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES FENEERE (57,305) (145,487)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT & EigiAE & &
LIABILITIES 33,277 30,944
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERHER
Amount due to a director EN—RESHE 28 (6,033) (6,602)
Amount due to immediate holding RN E R A A
company IE 28 (19,385) (15,919)
Convertible notes GIElES 23 (73,541) -
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBEE 24 (24,735) =
(123,694) (22,521)
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BR) BEF#E (90,417) 8,423
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR R G
Share capital [N 25 98,842 96,342
Reserves 1 26 (219,472) (165,759)
Deficit attributable to owners of RABEA AEWG
the Company RE (120,630) (69,417)
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR R 30,213 77,840
NET (DEFICIT)/EQUITY (F752), HERRiFE (90,417) 8,423

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these B Z i BRARNGA BB IRER 2 —30 10 -

consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors W =ZT——F= A=+ BEEEFS It i L IRE

on 30 March 2011. FiJEE o
Xie Xuan Qiu Yue Bl BBk
Director Director BE EE

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
8RR

As at 31 December 2010
R-B-—FF+-_HA=+—H

Note 2010 2009
BsE —E-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FEREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries hSLIEENEI P o 19 34,224 142,977
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade and other receivables Z 5 K H b EUER K 20 46 9
CURRENT LIABILITIES FENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & EHAE AR 22 5,395 89,373
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES RBERETE (5,349) (89,364)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT & RxE&E s
LIABILITIES 28,875 53,613
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERHER
Amount due to a director et —RZEEHIE 28 (210) (370)
Amount due to subsidiaries FET BT B A T k0B 19 (2,688) (8,238)
Amount due to immediate holding R E R A A
company I8 28 (19,873) (15,944)
Convertible notes GIE: e 23 (73,541) -
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFRIEEE 24 (2,367) -
(98,679) (24,552)
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BfR) BEF#E (69,804) 29,061
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARAE
Share capital (&N 25 98,842 96,342
Reserves (e 26 (168,646) (67,281)
NET (DEFICIT)/EQUITY () MRS (69,804) 29,061

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these FERT 2 MY sE B AN A B RS iR 38 2 — 215
consolidated financial statements.

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors HR=T——& = F =4 AEESSHE LISHE

on 30 March 2011. )% -
Xie Xuan Qiu Yue Bl BB
Director Director Ex EE

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR5 1 B ) TR

Attributable to owners of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2010

HE-S—F4+=A=+—ALFE

KATHA AR
Convertible
Issued notes Non-
share Share Capital  Translation reserve  Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve ik losses Sub-total interests Total
EETRE fRiyiRE BAGE B ERGE 2t It RRER 3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TR TEL THL TiEL TR TR THL T
A1 January 2009 RoTENE-A-H 9,342 119,693 26,020 (1,832 - ety P19 100083 78,889
Loss for the year TEEER - - - - - (18942) 8942) (02,527) (71,469)
Exchange difference arising on BEBNEBAEL
translation of foreign operations i3 - - - 719 - - 719 284 1,003
Total comprehensive income for the year K& E 2 ANGEE - - - 719 - (48942) (48,229) (22,243)) (70,466)
At 31 December 2009 and at RZZZNE
1 January 2010 —A=t-Bk
“T-35-8-R 9,342 119,693 26,020 (1,113 - (310359 69,417) 77,840 8423
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - - (67,716) (67,716) (47,786) (115,502)
Exchange difference arising on BERNEBAEL
tranglation of foreign operations EXES - - - (2,343) - - (2,343 159 (2,184
Total comprehensive income for the year  AEE2ANEEE - - - (2,343 - (67,716) (70,059) (47,627) (117,686)
Issue of shares by exercise of share options {7 BEREMZ TG 2,500 4,375 - - - - 6,875 - 6,875
Costs on issue of shares B 2R - 6] - - - - ® - G]
Issue of convertible notes for BTARSEN
settlement of balance of SAKEREAR
consideration for acquisition of BaERE
interests in a subsidlary - - - - 14,346 - 14,346 - 14,346
Deferred tax iabilties on convertble notes M 2 BRRER(E - - - - (2,367) - (2,367) - (2,367)
At 31 December 2010 R-F-%FE
+=A=+-H 98,842 124,060 2,00 (3,456) 1979 (378075  (120,630) 30213 (90,417)

TMEE (2% BRATF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= A AN =N —]
:ZwT\ = fﬁimui%
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

Note 2010 2009
Bt —E-FF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHER FHIT
CASH FLOWS FROM EREBEEZ
OPERATING ACTIVITIES HEkeE
Loss before taxation from continuing R BI5EK & 27K
operations BRI ATESIE (94,182) (61,710)
Profit/(loss) before taxation from RERIEEER 2
discontinued operations BRI (51E) 1,048 (9,653)
(93,134) (71,363)
Adjustments for: A& IR -
Interest income FLEIA (3) (4)
Other interest paid HiBE AT S 2,476 680
Depreciation of property, plant and %)% - = RBE
equipment e 540 1,205
Amortisation of intangible assets A 30,420 28,334
Impairment of trade receivables B SR Z RE = 9,108
Impairment of other receivables Hitb FEU IR BB 1,280 5,353
Impairment of amount due from JEUREE A RIFIA L
related companies VERIE] = 4
Impairment of other receivables HAb AR 2
written back EREEEE (980) (481)
Impairment of intangible assets mEE . RE 55,023 16,338
Other payables written back H b e AR SR Bl (1,003) -
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 REWERF 2 RIE
written back t24E (1,410) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant  H&EWE - HE R&E
and equipment it 59 408
Operating loss before changes in EEESEHAI
working capital IR EIE (6,732) (10,423)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and B 5 N E M EUER TR
other receivables (1), (432) 9,134
Increase in amount [ B N Bl FRIE
due from related companies 2N = (4)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B 5 N EAMENIRK
other payables #hn, G ) 5,364 (8,594)
Cash used in operations QBRI S (1,800) (9,887)
Tax paid BEAHE (10) (106)
Other interest paid HBAFE (939) (680)
Net cash used in operating activities 4% 4 % 7% 5 Fl 2 356 R %8 (2,749) (10,673)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,\\/T\ =) fﬁ i7a

mEx

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-—FT—FF{ -_A=+—HIFE

Note 2010 2009
Bt —E-FF ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
T FABT
CASH FLOWS FROM BREFHZHERE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income MEMA 3 4
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  WENIEE
equipment (153) (169)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - ME KX
plant and equipment RAEATS OB = 252
Net cash (used in)/generated from  #&&EB(FEH) EE2
investing activities BEFE (150) 87
CASH FLOWS FROM MEERNCHERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Payment to)/advance from a director (N FEE) EE8K (569) 249
Advance from immediate holding BEERARRK
company 3,466 4,779
Proceeds from issue of shares by E1T{E i AR i T 21T AR (D
exercise of share options FRSs0R 6,867 -
Net cash generated from financing  ®&ESEL 2
activities WM& FEE 9,764 5,028
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) RERRLSZEEY
IN CASH AND CASH s (i )iREE
EQUIVALENTS 6,865 (5,558)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RE#IZIRE&R
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR HE%EY 1,863 6,417
Effects of foreign exchange EREH) B
rate changes (2,224) 1,004
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MREXRZIHEER
AT END OF THE YEAR HEEEY 21 6,504 1,863

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these BEM 2 M sE B A4

consolidated financial statements.

BUBHRERZ &0

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as
an exempted company with limited liability and its shares
are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information
section of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, the functional currency of the
Company.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are investment holdings, provision of online
content information and related technical services,
business consultation services, logistics services and
internet protocol television services.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
ultimate holding company is Glamour House Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

ATEN
SMNEEFER)BRAB(NARE AR
RAESHEETMA Iz ERRBERA
A ERODEBEBMARHAABER AR
BIER LT - RARIEMPEERLEESE
BEME MU FAAF R AT E R
— 8 e

HEMBRERUNBITIE  BT/AR
BIZIREEH -

ARBIREMBAR([AEE]) 22
B RERERER RESLARERAR
MR RS - XBEAIRS - WRR
B R EEBREERRY -

ARREERE  EREBRIZESTM
B 7 2 Glamour House Limited T3 4N A &)
ZERIKIERAF] o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group and the Company have
applied the following new and revised Standards and
Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) which are or have been become effective.

HKFRSs (Amendment) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Additional Exemptions for First-
time Adopters

Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business Combinations

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

HKFRS 5 (Amendments) Non-current Assets Held for Sale

and Discontinued Operations

HKAS 27 (as revised in 2008) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged Items

HK (IFRIC)-Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets
to Owners

HK (IFRIC)-Int 18 Transfers of Assets from
Customers

HK (Int) 4 (Revised) Determination of the Length of
Lease Term in respect of
Hong Kong Land Lease

Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand

Clause

HK (Int) 5

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and
revised HKFRSs has no material effect on the financial
statements of the Group and the Company for the current
and prior accounting periods.

2.

ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FF+ _HA=+—HIFE

FER#E] R EIER] BRMBRE
A FEMBREZEA D)

RAFE » REEBRARBRAIATH
BAGRMAGRMILCERZHAT R
ISR R Ko i 8 ([ 3R] RRERT B
B IRELRER]) -

BEHHHRE R [R-ZTNFY
(BFIA) BB HHRERER
MR |
RRUHREER [ BRI E 2B
F1R(EFTR) e
BEUHREEL [EENREHEN
B2 (BT R) B f2%5)

BREUBREEAER [XHAH]
(ZZT\FEER)

BBUBRSER [FEREZIRE
F5% (7 A) EEREHIE

BBEERETH
(ZBF\EEET)
BAGER

E9% (BFTA)
EE(EBRBHRERE [MESADLERSE
ZES)-RESEIR  BE]
EE(EBRMBHRERE [BEFEZEE]
ZES)-REE18%

[4R8 RBHBHRK

[REREFER

BiBmE-$43E [EAREEALIH
(&{&7T) EmHEERRE]
BitRE - F5% [BiaR 28
—ERABBER
BRERIRZ
BHEFZNR]
B TPt E SN - BRI RGBT &

R R A B R A RV AT
BB & RN B RE L EERE

S/ 480
R E o

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR MR A
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

(@) HKFRS 3 (as revised in 2008) Business

Combinations and HKAS 27 (as revised in
2008) Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements

HKFRS 3 (Revised) introduces a number of changes
in the accounting for business combinations that
affect the initial measurement of non-controlling
interests, the accounting for transaction costs, the
initial recognition and subsequent measurement of a
contingent consideration and business combinations
achieved in stages. These changes will impact the
amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results
in the period that an acquisition occurs, and future
reported results.

HKAS 27 (Revised) requires that a change in the
ownership interest of a subsidiary without loss of
control is accounted for as an equity transaction.
Therefore, such a change will have no impact
on goodwill, nor will it give rise to a gain or loss.
Furthermore, the revised standard changes the
accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary
as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary.
Consequential amendments were made to various
standards, including, but not limited to HKAS 7
Statement of Cash Flows, HKAS12 Income Taxes,
HKAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates, HKAS 28 Investments in Associates
and HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures.

The changes introduced by these revised standards
are applied prospectively and affect the accounting
of acquisitions, loss of control and transactions with
non-controlling interests after 1 January 2010.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

(b) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 issued in May 2009
sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
There are separate transitional provisions for
each standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments results in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments has had a
significant financial impact on the Group. Details of
the key amendments most applicable to the Group
are as follows:

HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Requires that
only expenditures that result in a recognised asset in
the statement of financial position can be classified as
a cash flow from investing activities.

The Group and the Company have not early applied the
following new and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010 except for the
amendments to HKFRS 3 (as
revised in 2008), HKFRS 7,
HKAS 1 and HKAS 28

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosure for First-time
Adopters @

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets @

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets ©
HKAS 24 (as revised in 2009) Related Party Disclosures

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Right Issues ©l

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 Prepayments of Minimum
(Amendments) Funding Requirement @
HK(FRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities

with Equity Instruments @

AREe B SR M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FF+_HA=1+—HIFE

2. BRI REETEEMBRE
EA([FEMBREEA D (E)

(b) R-BBAFHEEMHBEE LA
e
W=TENEEARGH N -TT
NEHEBHBRELAORE |8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KR e B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2010 or 1 January 2011, as appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2010.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2011.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
February 2010.

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012,

7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November
2009) introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (as revised in November 2010) adds
requirements for financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that
are within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change
relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS
9, for financial liabilities that are designated as at fair
value through profit or loss, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in
other comprehensive income, unless the presentation
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in
other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Previously,
under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the
fair value of the financial liability designated as at fair value
through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2013, with earlier application. The
Directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 that will be adopted
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 January 2013.

The amendments to HKFRS 7 titled Disclosures —
Transfers of Financial Assets increase the disclosure
requirements for transactions involving transfers of
financial assets. These amendments are intended to
provide greater transparency around risk exposures when
a financial asset is transferred but the transferor retains
some level of continuing exposure in the asset. The
amendments also require disclosures where transfers of
financial assets are not evenly distributed throughout the
period.

The Directors do not anticipate that these amendments
to HKFRS 7 will have a significant effect on the Group’s
disclosures regarding transfers of trade receivables
previously effected. However, if the Group enters into
other types of transfers of financial assets in the future,
disclosures regarding those transfers may be affected.

HKAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (as revised in 2009)
modifies the definition of a related party and simplifies
disclosures for government-related entities.

ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FF+ _HA=+—HIFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

2,

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Cont’d)

The disclosure exemptions introduced in HKAS 24 (as
revised in 2009) do not affect the Group because the
Group is not a government-related entity. However,
disclosures regarding related party transactions and
balances in these consolidated financial statements may
be affected when the revised version of the Standard
is applied in future accounting periods because some
counterparties that did not previously meet the definition
of a related party may come within the scope of the
Standard.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 provides guidance regarding the
accounting for the extinguishment of a financial liability
by the issue of equity instruments. To date, the Group
has not entered into transactions of this nature. However,
if the Group does enter into any such transactions
in the future, HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 will affect the required
accounting. In particular, under HK(IFRIC)-Int 19, equity
instruments issued under such arrangements will be
measured at their fair value, and any difference between
the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished
and the fair value of equity instruments issued will be
recognised in profit or loss.

The Directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised Standards,
Amendments or Interpretations will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), issued by the HKICPA
and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the GEM
Listing Rules and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments and intangible assets, which
have been measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies set out in note 4.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont’d)
Going concern

The Group had net current liabilities and loss
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$57,305,000 and approximately HK$67,716,000
respectively as at 31 December 2010. The directors of
the Company endeavor to improve the Group’s financial
position and had taken measures to reduce overheads
and costs. Furthermore, the directors of the Company
are currently exploring various options, which include the
issue of new shares, in order to provide additional equity
funding to the Group. In addition, the immediate holding
company has agreed to provide continuing financial
support for the Group to meet its liabilities as they fall due
and the directors consider the new business operation
acquired previously would generate sufficient working
capital to support the Group’s operations.

The directors of the Company are of the view that the
above measures will enable the Group to continue as
a going concern and that the Group will have sufficient
working capital for its present requirements. Accordingly,
the directors of the Company are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on the going concern basis.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the
effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other
members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(a) Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of
a subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. Prior to 1 January 2010, losses
applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess
of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s
equity were allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the non-controlling
interests had a binding obligation and were able to
make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in

existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries on or after 1 January 2010

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and
attributed to owners of the Company.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Cont’d)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries (Cont’d)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. Where certain assets of the subsidiary are
measured at revalued amounts or fair values and the
related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity, the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
are accounted for as if the Company had directly
disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained
earnings). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled
entity.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries prior to 1 January 2010

Increases in interests in existing subsidiaries were
treated in the same manner as the acquisition of
subsidiaries, with goodwill or a bargain purchase
gain being recognised where appropriate. For
decreases in interests in subsidiaries, regardless
of whether the disposals would result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries, the difference
between the consideration received and the
adjustment to the non-controlling interests was
recognised in profit or loss.
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iR MR A
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b) Business combinations

Business combinations that took place on or

after 1 January 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

e deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and
HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to
sharebased payment transactions of the
acquiree or the replacement of an acquiree’s
share-based payment transactions with share-
based payment transactions of the Group are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 "share-
based payment” at the acquisition date; and

e assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations” are measured in accordance with

that Standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b) Business combinations (Cont’d)

Business combinations that took place on or
after 1 January 2010 (Cont’d)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair
value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the
sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling
interests are measured at their fair value or another
measurement basis required by another Standard.

Where the consideration the Group transfers
in a business combination includes assets or
liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and
considered as part of the consideration transferred
in a business combination. Changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that qualify
as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments
being made against goodwill or gain on bargain
purchase. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition
date. Measurement period does not exceed one
year from the acquisition date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b) Business combinations (Cont’d)

Business combinations that took place on or
after 1 January 2010 (Cont’d)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair
value of the contingent consideration that do not
qualify as measurement period adjustments depends
on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and
its subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as
an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39,
or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit
or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages,
the Group’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control),
and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity
interest recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity before the acquisition
date are reclassified to profit or loss when the Group
obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination
is incomplete by the end of the reporting period
in which the combination occurs, the Group
reports provisional amounts for the items for which
the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional
amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed as of the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected
the amounts recognised as of that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(b) Business combinations (Cont’d)

Business combinations that took place prior to
1 January 2010

The acquisition of business was accounted for using
the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition
was measured at the aggregate of the fair values,
at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities
incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree,
plus any costs directly attributable to the business
combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition were recognized at their
fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognized as
an asset and initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the cost of the business combination
over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognized. If, after reassessment, the
Group’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
exceeds the cost of the business combination, the
excess was recognized immediately in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interests in the acquiree were
initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportion of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognized.

Contingent consideration was recognised, if and only
if, the contingent consideration was probable and
could be measured reliably. Subsequent adjustments
to contingent consideration were recognised against
the cost of the acquisition.

Business combinations achieved in stages were
accounted for as separate steps. Goodwill was
determined at each step. Any additional acquisition
did not affect the previously recognised goodwill.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(c)

(d)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Company.
Control exists when the Company has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable
are taken into account.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, unless it is classified as held for
sale.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses and is presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash
generating units, that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that
financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to
the other assets of the unit pro rata on the basis of
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognized directly in
profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill capitalized is
included in the determination of the amount of profit
or loss on disposal.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

4. EEESFBXRE)

()

(d)

FtEB2AE

M AR IEEANRRAIEFZE
8 o MARBARER KA EE
—AEB P MR ERRARE
g RS ES - BITEES - R
AR FEEGE - @ BHEE
AT 2 BRI

RARBZBABAARF - R B
RAZBRERKA B FRIEER
AR EMDBRRIBIELES IR
B o

[

WEE RIS R E £ 2 BB IR ANRE
A REHREBEIE - WREE M
BIRARADFHZS

SRBERANE  WEAEEZE
BRO RIS ERREELSE
7 HReESLEUE MABE
i 35 48 51| T 78 HA AT A W B8 2 165 R R
EFREm -  CEIEREZREE
EENSGFETRENR  XEZE

TTRERIR o 3R MER BFE 2 W
BIEEAZEHEMS  BEOER
BIZRSELABURZVRFE T
RAETRENR - EREELE
iz A Bl e RPN B RE
B AUREBESRO R - AER
BEDBRIZ BN 2 EREEN R
HE ARBREECAZEEE
Z BREMEAR B AR BB AL M E A B
EZRENEEE B2 2RER
B HEEREaNER - BB
REBETENERARER -

REERRASELENUR  BF&
ez HBRESBIFALEZ
B -



T -TEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(e) Revenue recognition

U]

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for services
provided in the course of the ordinary activities, net
of discounts and sales related taxes.

() Income from the provision of project
consultancy services, internet solution services,
content services and logistic services is
recognised in accordance with the terms of the
underlying contracts and when the underlying
services are rendered;

(i) Income from the provision of internet protocol
television services is recognized in accordance
with the terms of the underlying subscription
agreement and when the underlying services
are rendered;

(i) Interest income from bank deposits is
recognised on a time-apportioned basis
that takes into account the effective yield on
the assets; and

(iv) Dividend income from investments excluding
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss is recognised when the shareholder’s right
to receive payment has been established.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairments losses. The cost of an asset comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs
of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred
after the asset has been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged
to the consolidated income statement for the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it
can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic
benefits expected to be obtained from the use of the
asset, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional
cost of that asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

U]

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

20% — 33% or over the
remaining lease terms,
whichever is shorter

20% - 50%

20% - 33%

Leasehold
improvement

Furniture and fixtures

Computer and
equipment

Motor vehicles 33%

Assets held under finance lease are depreciated

over their estimated useful lives on the same basis

as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the

relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item) is included in the
consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets other than goodwill

Expenditure on research activities is recognized
as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and an
appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development
costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment
losses. Other development expenditure is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(9)

(h)

Intangible assets other than goodwill (Cont’d)

Other intangible assets that are acquired by
the Group with finite useful lives are stated in
the statement of financial position at cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. Expenditure on internally
generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful
lives is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Period
and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful
lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion
that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite
is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite
useful life assessment for that asset. If they do
not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively
from the date of change and in accordance with the
policy for amortisation of intangible assets with finite
lives as set out above.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. In addition,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are tested
for impairment annually, and whenever there is
indication that they may be impaired.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognized as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another Standard, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that Standard.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the assets is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under Standard, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

(h)
other than goodwill (Cont’d)
increase under that Standard.
(i) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognized when a group entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition.

(i) Financial assets
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees on points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

The financial assets include loans and
receivables.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

4. EEESFBXRE)

(h)

(i)

ARAEREREEZBE(EER
o) (4&)

R EREEEERER - AEERT
BeAmRE&ErI At kE s
B SN BREE TSR
BENBEFEYEREDMERSE
B BREE o B0 2 6l (B &5 18 AN B
RIBRER  BIFEREERER
fERIRBEES IR - BRINU
BT - REEEZEE G RZEA
ZAREEGIBI -

IR

EAKEERZEITUAERIAZ
BHE - BBEERMERENE
RBARR - MBEERMBREER
ARFERE - A HERE - B
SBTHBEERMBEEERE
E 2R SRAKEFBERIMAT L
BEXMBAEBZAFERETN
B o

() HBEE
BB FIFX

BERMEFEADAEEHTAZ
B SR IA Ko oy B AE B B R A
BWAZTTE - BEBRFETIR
BRHERR  HEKTAZRE
SHEHESGERMBE SR - £
FEIT IR AR AR AIR WA (B
BARERN XA R0 2
—UIRSEMNHEWRER - R
SRR B BT R ) 2R
EFEZ MR

M5B EBRREET MR



—EoTEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

0]

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables (including trade
and other receivables and cash and bank
balances) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
impairment, except where the receivables are
interest-free loans without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the recognition of interest
would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of the reporting
period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of
one or more events that occurred after initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(i) Financial assets (Cont’d)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
trade receivables, are assessed for impairment
on an individual basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments that pass the credit period, as well
as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default
on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate. If, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return
for similar financial assets. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.
(See the accounting policy below)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

0]

(ii)

Financial assets (Cont’d)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The carrying amount of the financial asset
is reduced by the impairment loss directly
for all financial assets with the exception of
trade receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements
and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, unless the effect of discounting
would not be material, in which case they are
stated at cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(ii) Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company are
classified separately as financial liabilities and
equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the
Company’s own equity instruments is an equity
instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible
instruments. This amount is recorded as a
liability on an amortised cost basis using the
effective interest method until extinguished
upon conversion or at the instrument’s maturity
date.

The conversion option classified as equity
is determined by deducting the amount of
the liability component from the fair value of
the compound instrument as a whole. This
is recognised and included in equity, net of
income tax effects, and is not subsequently
remeasured. In addition, the conversion option
classified as equity will remain in equity until
the conversion option is exercised, in which
case, the balance recognised in equity will
be transferred to share premium. Where the
conversion option remains unexercised at the
maturity date of the convertible bonds, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred
to accumulated losses. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i) Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial liabilities and equity (Cont’d)
Convertible notes (Cont’d)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are
recognised directly in equity. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included
in the carrying amount of the liability component
and are amortised over the lives of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognized when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets
expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial assets. On derecognition of a
financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable is
recognized in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(i)

)

Financial instruments (Cont’d)

(iii) Derecognition (Cont’d)

On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid
and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if:

U

(i)

(iv)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control
the group or exercise significant influence over
the group on making financial and operating
policy decisions, or has joint control over the

group;

the group and the party are subject to common
control;

the party is an associate of the group or a joint
venture in which the group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the group or the group’s parent,
or close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close member of the family
member of a party referred to in (i) or is an entity
under the control, joint control or significant
influence of such individuals; or

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

@)

(k)

Related parties (Cont’d)

(viy the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
group or of any entity that is a related party of
the group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that individual in their dealings
with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party
transaction when there is a transfer of resources or
obligations between related parties.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other
than legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.
At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the
leased asset is capitalized at the present value of
the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element,
to reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalized finance leases are included in
property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to
provide a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

U

(m)

(n)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short-term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
as reported in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(n)

Income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such as deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising associated with
investments in subsidiaries except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognized to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period. The measurement of
deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
conseqguences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting
period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax is recognized
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that
are recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax is
also recognized in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(o) Employee benefits

0]

(i)

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, bonuses, paid leaves and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the period
in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated at their present values.

Retirement benefits schemes

The Company’s PRC subsidiaries participate
in defined contribution retirement schemes
organised by the local government authorities in
the PRC. All of the PRC employees are entitled
to an annual pension equivalent to a fixed portion
of their basic salaries at their retirement dates.
The Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to contribute certain percentage ranged from
11% to 15% of the basic salaries of their PRC
employees to the retirement schemes and
have no further obligation for post-retirement
benefits. The contributions are charged to the
consolidated income statement of the Group as
they become payable in accordance with the
rules of schemes.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
(o) Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(iii)

(iv)

Share-based payments

The fair value of the share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share-based
payment reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread
over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is included in profit or
loss for the year of the review, unless the original
employee expenses qualify for recognition as
an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based payment reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based payment reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based payment reserve
until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms
part of the entity’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences
are recognized in equity in the consolidated financial
statements. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period
except for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognized directly in equity, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognized
directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(p)

(q)

Foreign currencies (Cont’d)

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong
dollars) at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of the reporting period, and their income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuated
significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
included in the translation reserve as a separate
component of equity. Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the rate
of prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are included in the
translation reserve.

Financial guarantees, provision and contingent
liabilities
(i) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group’s policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(q) Financial guarantees, provision and contingent
liabilities (Cont’d)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial guarantees (Cont’d)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 4(q) if and when (1) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (2) the
amount of that claim on the Group is expected
to exceed the amount currently carried in
trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee, i.e. the amount initially recognised
less accumulated amortisation.

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combination

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a
business combination are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition
at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 4(q).
Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued
are disclosed in accordance with note 4(qg).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation as a result of a past event,
and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Present obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation or the amount of the obligation
cannot be measured with sufficient reliably.
Possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as
a contingent liability unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

(r)

(s)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of he regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group’s business, the operations and cash flows
of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest
of the Group and which represents major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is
part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively
with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if early. It also
occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
income statement, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.
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5.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of
estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 4, management is required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart
from those involving estimations (see below), that
management has made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements.

() Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or
the event previously causing the impairment
no longer exists, the Group has to exercise
judgment in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred that may effect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has
not been in existence; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by net
present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the
asset or derecognition; and (3) the appropriate
key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Cont’d)
(a) Critical judgments in applying accounting
policies (Cont’d)

(i)

Income taxes

Deferred tax is provided using the liability
method, on all temporary differences at the
end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses carried forward to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which the unused tax
losses can be utilised, based on all available
evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgment regarding the future performance of
the particular legal entity or tax group in which
the deferred tax asset has been recognised.
A variety of other factors are also evaluated
in considering whether there is convincing
evidence that it is probable that some portion
or all or the deferred tax assets will ultimately
be realised, such as the existence of taxable
temporary differences, tax planning strategies
and the periods in which estimated tax losses
can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred
tax assets and related financial models and
budgets are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and to the extent that there is
insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient
taxable profits will be available within the
utilization periods to allow utilisation of the carry
forward tax losses, the asset balance will be
reduced and charged to profit and loss.
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5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Cont’d)

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

() Impairment test of assets

The Group determines whether an asset is
impaired at least on an annual basis or where
an indication of impairment exists. This requires
an estimation of the value in use of the asset.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group
to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the assets and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

(i) Income taxes

The Group reviews the carrying amount of
deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period and reduces the amount to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
This requires an estimation of the future taxable
profits. Estimating the future taxable profits
requires the Group to make an estimate of the
expected future earnings from the Group and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of the earnings.

(i) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives, after taking into account of their
estimated residual value. The determination
of the useful lives and residual values involve
management’s estimation. The Group assesses
annually the residual value and the useful life
of the property, plant and equipment and if the
expectation differs from the original estimate,
such a difference may impact the depreciation
in the year when the estimate is changed and
the future period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-—FT—FF{ -_A=+—HIFE

6. REVENUE 6. Wiz
(@) An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as (@ AEBFALERBEHTWOT
follows:
2010 2009
—E-TF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHTT
Internet protocol television service  HEAEEIR RIS E
fees 7,133 -
(o) An analysis of the Group’s other revenue and net b) AEBFAEMYERBAFED
income for the year is as follows: T
2010 2009
—E-TF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHT
Other income Habizs 2 405
Other payable written back HAb e AR SREE 607 -
Impairment of other receivable Hb AR 2R (E
written back (o) 980 -
Interest income M BEWA 2 2
Net foreign exchange gains bE 5 Uk 2= 558 = 1
1,591 408

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010

#

7.

EoR—FE A= —AILEE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Segment information reported to the chief operating
decision maker, directors of the Company, is the type of
services rendered by the Group’s operating division for
the purposes of resources allocation and performance
assessment. The Group’s operating and reportable
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

The Group is currently organized into three major
business divisions:

(i)  content solution and business consultation services;
(i) logistics services; and
(i) internet protocol television services.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from
external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in
the year (2009: Nil).

Segment result represents the loss incurred by each
segment without allocation of corporate income and
expense, central administration cost, directors’ salaries,
interest income, gain/loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment, amortization of intangible assets,
impairment of (i) trade and other receivables, (i) amount
due from related companies and (iii) intangible assets,
finance costs and impairment of trade and other
receivables written back.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets.

Segment liabilities include all trade and other payables
other than tax payable.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(a) Segment revenues and results

ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FF+ _HA=+—HIFE

7. SEWE#EE
(a) SEBMIE RS

2010
—%-%%
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BETEEE RIHEEEHE
Content
solution and
business Internet
consultation protocol
services television
ABHIE services Logistics
BAARR ER Sub-total services Total
EHRMRE SRR Nt iR ARES @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiER TiER TiER TiER TiER

Segments revenue ek - 7,133 7,133 - 7,133
Segments results DS - 574 574 (288) 286
Interest income FIEWA 3
Unallocated corporate income N NI ON 2
Unallocated corporate expenses AAWDARZ (7,560)
Other payable written back e R AR 1,008
Impairment of trade receivables B IR A ERE

written back 1,410
Impairment of other receivables HibEUERT 2 AR

written back 980
Loss on disposal of property, HENE « BERE#EL

plant and equipment BB (59)
Amortisation of intangible assets AW EESH (30,420)
Impairment of other receivables H YRS 2R E (1,280)
Impairment of intangible assets BREEME (55,023)
Finance costs RERA (2,476)
Consolidated loss before taxation BRASAER (93,134)

TMEE (2% BRATF
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BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7. HEREEE
(@) Segment revenues and results (Cont’d) (a) PP RES(E)
2009
—ZENE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
BEREER RIHEERE
Content
solution and
business Internet
consultation protocol
services television
N services Logistics
BAARR BHA Sub-total services Total
EBHARS L et W RS @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL THEL THEL THEL

Segments revenue HElE - - - 27,395 27,395
Segments results DEEE (1) (5,062) (5,089) (833) (5,896)
Interest income FISHA 4
Unallocated corporate income EN NI ON 918
Unallocated corporate expenses FABDAFAY (6,169)
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BEL&E

plant and equipment BB (408)
Impairment of trade receivables B AR RE (9,103)
Impairment of other receivables Hi YRS 2 RE (6,353)
Impairment of amount due from JEM B A RIFUE 2R E

related companies (@
Amortisation of intangible assets B EERE (28,334)
Impairment of intangible assets EREEZRE (16,338)
Finance costs RERA (680)
Consolidated loss before taxation BipGAER (71,363)

84 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE - F—FFf+ - H=+—HIEEF

7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7. HEpEEE)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (b) PBEERER
2010
—%-%%
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
RECRER RIERER
Content
solution and
business Internet
consultation protocol
services television
abadidi services Logistics
BARER EHHE Sub-total services Total
E3p ) SRR Ivgt Wrim AR @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FER FER FER FER

Segment assets NEBE - 100,976 100,976 247 101,223
Unallocated assets *OREE 7,209
Consolidated assets GRAE 108,432
Segment liabilties HEEE (64) (57,038) (57,102) (27,388) (84,490)
Unallocated liabilties ApEARE (114,360)
Consolidated liabilities GEBE (198,850)

TEE (3R BRAT 85
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FF+ -_HA=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Cont’d)

7. SEREE(E)
(b) SBWEERERE)

2009
ZETNE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
5t HSES BRILREE
Content
solution and
business Internet
consultation protocol
services television
NEfE services Logistics
BARER TR Sub-total services Total
FHHARY BRERE et ik 0) mzt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FAL FAL FAL FAL
Segment assets NEEE - 184,379 184,379 2,208 186,587
Unallocated assets FAEEE 1,512
Consolidated assets GRREE 188,099
Segment liabilities NEEE (64) (33,468) (33,532) (29,132) (62,664)
Unallocated liabilities AOEARE (117,012)
Consolidated liabilities RAAE (179,676)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(c) Other segment information

ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
Br—_F—FFF+_HA=+—HIFZE

7. HBERGE)
(c) HthsaEs

2010
—%-%%
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
RETEER R TRER
Content
solution and
business Internet
consultation protocol
services television
REHE services Logistics
BRARR HE4 services
S aE AR EHRH ViR ARES
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
Capital expenditure BARY - 153 -
Depreciation of property, ¥ - BELRE
plant and equipment e - 498 -
Amortisation of intangible assets /& - 30,420 -
Impairment of intangible assets & EAE 7 R - 55,023 -
Impairment of other receivables  E il ER 2 FifE - - 470
Impairment of trade receivables & B ENER 7 F{ERE
written back - - (1,410)
Impairment of other receivables  E it et 2 B RE
written back - (980) -
Other payables written back H A AR R ) - - (396)

TDMEE (2% BRATF
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BE—FT—FF+ -_HA=+—HIFE

7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d) 7. HEpEEE)
(c) Other segment information (Cont’d) (c) EHthpImEFR(E)
2009
ZETNE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
SRS R BRILEEER
Content
solution and
business Internet
consultation protocol
services television
MR services Logistics
BARTER GE services
EE AR ERRH Wik
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL THT THET
Capital expenditure BAREY - 94 63
Depreciation of property, ¥ - BELRE
plant and equipment ZIE - 694 319
Amortisation of intangible assets & B8 - 28,334 -
Impairment of intangible assets £/ EE 7 HE - 16,338 -
Impairment of trade receivables B S REMEZ Y FilE - 114 8,989
Impairment of other receivables  E it REURER S 2 Al(E 69 - -

88 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited



—ETEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(d)

(e)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are mainly located in the
PRC.

The Group’s revenue from external customers by
geographical location are detailed below:

ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
Br—_F—FFF+_HA=+—HIFZE

SEPEE(E)
(d) HsE
AEENLHEEEMNEE -

7K S Wi S B B BN
R IT :

2010 2009
—E—-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FiIT
Continuing operations BEGEER
PRC T 7,133 -
Discontinued operations BRI EERE
PRC i - 27,395

Non-current assets are mainly located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

Included in revenues from external customers of
7,133,000 (2009: HK$27,395,000) are revenues of
HK$3,102,000 (2009: HK$932,000) which arose
from services rendered to the Group’s largest
customer under the internet protocol television
services segment (2009: Logistics services
segment).

FRBEELBZMNHE -

(e) FHAEXEEFHEH

A S8 & B Uk %5 7,133,000 7T (=
T T A FE: 27,3950008 7T ) B
153,102,000 T(ZEF I F
932,000/ 7T ) 2 Wz - B U 2K
BEEBEEERESB(ZZZN
F: MRBEDI) TRAAERRA
EPIRME R ©

TDMEE (2% BRATF
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. EEREE
2010 2009
—E—-FF —TTHhEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHET
Other interest HAbFILE 939 680
Imputed interest expense of MRER 2 HEF B
convertible notes 1,537 -
2,476 680

9. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM CONTINUING 9. KRBEFEE2E£EZRBigiEE

OPERATIONS

The Group’s loss before taxation from continuing REBFELEXEF CBRBAIBETIE

operations is arrived at after charging:

N TS IEES

2010 2009
—T-TF ZZTThEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FiETT
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIRA(TNEIEESH)
remuneration)
- Wages, salaries and other benefits ~ — T & - %4 R HHEN] 1,739 2,599
— Retirement benefits scheme —RIKEFIFHEMER
contributions 297 292
Auditors’ remuneration eI &
— current year —NEFE 550 550
— over-provision in previous year —BAFEBERE - (120)
— other service fee — H AR5 & 50 -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEMEEZ
equipment e 540 886
Amortisation of intangible assets A 30,420 28,334
Impairment of trade receivables E 5 EWIRF 2 RIE = 114
Impairment of other receivables HAb e Rk 2 RE 810 5,353
Impairment of amount due from JEWRE R EI AL
related companies B = 4
Impairment of intangible assets EEERE 55,023 16,338
Loss on disposal of property, plant and &Y% « BE&EE
equipment &8 59 435
Operating lease rentals in respect of T RigF 7 &%
land and buildings M#HEE 335 976
Legal and professional fees EREEREN 3,291 864
Net foreign exchange loss bE N 18 T8 11 -

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BEr—_ZF—FFF+ _HA=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’ 10. EERESFEM
REMUNERATION
(a) Directors’ remuneration (a) EEH
The details of emoluments of each Director are 2EEESEBOT

shown below:

Year ended 31 December 2010 REBEE-—F-FF+=-F=+—-H
IEEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits  contributions
Fees 4] BAERH Total
Name of Director Bl ok REMFIE BELEA st
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
THET THER THET THET
Executive directors: BITEE :
Xie Xuan HiE 1,080 - - 1,080
Yang Qiulin (Note) Rk (FsE) = - - -
Qiu Yue fifiis - - - -
Non-executive directors: EHITEE :
Lo Mun Lam, Raymond EE& 24 - - 24
Chandler Andrew Chandler Andrew
James James 540 - 12 552

Independent non-executive BIIFEH T

directors: BEE:
Wu Jixue RHEE 30 = - 30
Zhang Daorong RiB L 43 - - 43
Feng Ke B 18 - - 18
1,740 - 12 1,752
Note:  Resigned on 18 March 2011. i R—E——F= 8+ )\HET -

THEE (3R ARAT 1
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BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(a) Directors’ remuneration (Cont’d)
Year ended 31 December 2009

10. EERESHM(Z)

(a) EEHW=E)
REE-ZFFAFT+=A=1+—H

IEFEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
and other scheme
benefits contributions
Fees e R RIKEF Total
Name of Director EEScE we REAFz SRR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Executive directors: BITEE:
Xie Xuan s 540 - - 540
Yang Qiulin BRI - - - -
Qiu Yue Jifii - - - -
Non-executive directors: EHITEE:
Lo Mun Lam, Raymond EHR 24 - - 24
Chandler Andrew Chandler Andrew
James (Note) James(Ff3E) 125 - 3 128
Independent non-executive B3I EHIT
directors: BEE:
Wu Jixue Y=l 30 - - 30
Zhang Daorong DR EES 48 - - 48
Feng Ke BR 18 - - 18
785 - 3 788
Note:  Appointed on 8 October 2009. Mzt : R-ZTNFTANBEZE-

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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10. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’

REMUNERATION (Cont’d)
(b) Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the
year included two (2009: one) directors whose
remuneration are set out in directors’ remuneration
in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the remaining

ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FF+ _HA=+—HIFE

10. EERESHM(Z)

(b)

AfunEHES

FA- AfusmFHEETEEMML
(ZZZNF : —(EF - HFHB
IR EX()EFHM—F - Atk
—(ZFTNhF : O FEFRE

three (2009: four) non-director employees are as B2 HBEFIFNT ¢
follows:
2010 2009
- —EENF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Salaries, allowances and other e SRR R EMFZE
benefits 614 1,040
Retirement benefits scheme RN SIS
contributions 56 37
670 1,077

Their emoluments fell within the following band:

BEZMENFATERE -

Number of highest
paid individuals

BEFEEAE
2010 2009
—E-FF “ETNE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 21,000,000 7T 3 4

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (RELATING TO 11.

CONTINUING OPERATIONS)

(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

FriaBi = (BARFEEEER)

(a) REEEEWBRZHBIES :

2010 2009
—E—-FF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FiBIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIHARI1E — BB 158
Charge for the year FHRE = -
Under-provision in previous years — iB{F EEBETR T = 106
- 106
Current tax — PRC Enterprise BNEATRIE — AR B 1 FR1SHY
Income Tax
Charge for the year FARME - -
- 106
Deferred tax (Note 24) IRIERLIA (Mi7E24) 22,368 -
Tax charge IR 22,368 106

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of
16.5% (2009: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits for the year.

PRC subsidiaries are subject to PRC Enterprise Tax
at the rate of 25% (2009: 25%). Taxation arising in
other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing
in the relevant jurisdictions.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

EBFBRIZF NG ERE S F
Z2165%(ZZTZNF : 16.5%) 5t
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ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BEr—_ZF—FFF+ _HA=+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (RELATING TO 1. FiGHREX(FARFEEEETR)
CONTINUING OPERATIONS) (Cont’d) (&)
(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense (b) FIEHRZTHEGE2EKERTEH
and accounting loss per the consolidated RIEABEE 2SR 2 HER
statement of comprehensive income at nTF :

(c)

applicable tax rates is as follows:

2010 2009

—E—-FF ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

THER FHTT

Loss before taxation B A 18 (94,182) (61,710)
Notional tax on loss before tax, RIRABE R EER 2

calculated at the rates i M) 2 i FA B R BR B B S

applicable to profits in the BHECBEMIA

jurisdictions concerned (20,383) (18,160)
Income not subject to tax BEHF 2 WA (916) (127)
Expenses not deductible for tax TREMF 2

purposes 21,537 11,168
Unrecognised tax losses REERIEE 18 167 7,119
Tax under-provision in previous years i@ & & 7~ @ B B R = 106
Utilisation of previous recognised tax {5 /A8 5t 51 2 BRI IAE 18

losses (405) -
Deferred tax on intangible assets B EE CRERIA(FIEE24)

(Note 24) 22,368 -
Income tax expense for the year FRZEHERES 22,368 106
Income tax recognised directly in equity (c) EEMIEREDRZFIRHR

2010 2009
—E—-FF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHTT
Deferred tax ERERIA
Arising on transactions with owners: BB AETTR BFTELE
Initial recognition of the equity TR EE 2
component of convertible notes RSP 2,367 -
2,367 -

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

During the year, the Group has ceased its logistics
services segment operations. The cessation is consistent
with the Group’s strategies to focus its resources in the
internet protocol television business.

Accordingly, the operations of logistics services were
classified as discontinued operations in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sales and
Discontinued Operations. The results of the discontinued
operations included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income are as follows:

2, WRIFEEBER

FA - RNREBEKEYRRG D #82 £
B - RIEBRDMZEBEENE
SENRE  FAKEAIETEREER
EEMBERELL -

At - ARREREF BB RS LR
FEORFBELEZFRBEERE KL
REXK | LYRRBEBFDB/EL
RERR - tAREEERER 2K IE
BRI RAW T

2010 2009
—T-TF —TTNE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T
Profit/(loss) for the year from REERBRILEESEEZ
discontinued operations ¥, (§518)
Turnover o X - 27,395
Cost of sales HEMA = (21,962
Gross profit EF - 5,433
Other revenue and net income H fhlias RURAF 58 1,970 514
Administrative and operating expenses #TE & & iER % (922) (15,600)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREL AR R, (E51E) 1,048 (9,653)
Income tax expense FriSHif = - -
Profit/(loss) for the year from REERELIEEER 2
discontinued operations w il (E1E) 1,048 (9,653)

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE-—FT—FF{ -_A=+—HIFE

12. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Cont’d)

The profit/(loss) before taxation from discontinued

operations is arrived at after charging:

RIEEEEER(E)

RELIEEEB 2HRBANER (8

18) TR TR IRES

2010 2009
—T-TF T NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BTIRA(TEIEEEHIN)
remuneration)
— Wages, salaries and other benefits —I1& - HFalhEfEH 105 3,305
- Retirement benefits scheme —RUREFET SR
contributions 40 458
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BEEEREZ
equipment e = 319
Impairment of trade receivables E S EWIRF 2 RIE - 8,989
Impairment of other receivables H At EU AR R BB 470 -
Operating lease rentals in respect of T Mg F g
land and buildings Gitkyit 95 786
Legal and professional fees EEREXEER 1 27
Cash flows from discontinued operations RERILESEBRZHEERE
2010 2009
—E-FF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiEIT
Net cash used in operating activites 442 &ETA 2 RS 558 (1,163) (9,622)
Net cash generated from investing REERHEZIRE FRE
activities 48 6,438
Net cash used in financing activities BRI S R (49) 3)
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes YEXR & &) 2 5/ £ 42 (358)
Net decrease in cash or cash Re MRS EYRD FEE
equivalents (1,122) (3,545)

MERMRIMLEXBME  KAEZHEHNK
B2k HaReREXRMBEMEZL
RENEEMZY  HMONFARADLILE
BZEBO N BHR IEEE 5 -

For the purpose of presenting the discontinued
operations, the comparative consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of cash
flows and the related notes have been re-represented as
if the operations discontinued during the year had been
discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period.

TEE (3R BRAT 97
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FF+ -_HA=+—HIFE

13. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

13. FATHEA ANEILEE

2010 2009
—E-FF ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
T FAET

Amount of consolidated loss attributable 7 78 ‘A B B 7 R &= F R 18 =~

to owners of the Company dealt with 22 BB AE(E5 A BB

in the Company’s financial statements (7,859) (2,134)
Impairment on amount due from FEULHI B A B IB 2 RE

subsidiaries (109,852) (7,532)
Impairment on investment in subsidiary K@ A 72184 2 RmE - (391)
Company’s loss for the year RRE 2 FAEE (117,711) (10,057)

The consolidated loss attributable to the owners of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2010
includes a loss of approximately HK$7,859,000 (2009:
HK$2,134,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

14. DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividends for the year ended 31 December 2010 (2009:
Nil).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

14.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The basic earnings/(loss) per share is calculated based on

the Group’s loss attributable to owners

ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FF+_HA=+—HIFE

15. BIREH (81H)

FRERRR,(BE) IRBEA R RHE

of the Company ﬁAf{£$%lfﬁT§&¢WE§*f75@

and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in B 7 ANiE T EE
issue during the year:
2010 2009
—E—FF ZETNF
Weighted average number of ordinary FA{EstEGIREAREF](Ei8)
shares used in calculation of basic 2 E AR IR T E
earnings/(loss) per share 970,601,548 963,417,986
Effect of dilutive potential BEEEB N o Tmlk e
ordinary shares & 452,248,469 27,034,757
Weighted average number of ordinary  F{EztESIREERF,(E18)
shares used in calculation of diluted B NRE T8
earnings/(loss) per share 1,422,850,017 990,452,743
Continuing and discontinued FHEEEEBRRILE
operations (Note) TS (PEE)
Loss for the year attributable to KARER ANERARFEREE
the owners of the Company (HK$'000) (Fi&7T) (67,716) (48,942)
Basic loss per share (HK cents) BIREAEE GBIL) (6.98) (5.08)
Continuing operations (Note) HEEEETE(MisE)
Loss for the year from continuing KARER NEEREIFE
operations attributable to the T REEEE
owners of the Company (HK$’000) (F%1) (68,764) (39,289)
Basic loss per share (HK cents) FRREAEEGEWL) (7.08) (4.08)
Discontinued operations RIEEEE TS
Profit/(loss) for the year from KARER AERRBE K IE
discontinued operations attributable to 484 ¥ 7% v NEE
the owners of the Company (HK$’'000) %,/ (&1#E)
(F%&7T) 1,048 (9,653)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share BREAZF,(EE)
(HK cents) (L) 0.11 (1.00)
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) G &i#ss 25 GEL) N/A
0.07 N3

No diluted loss per share is presented for the years
ended 31 December 2010 and 2009 as the potential
shares arising from the exercise and conversion of the
Company’s share options and convertible notes would
decrease the loss per share of the Company for these
years and is regarded as anti-dilutive.

Note:

et : UEEHNEE_—ZT—

ENEFE+ = HE+
tﬂﬁﬁ&%)@ﬁ@’

Zﬁ%ﬂ}ifiﬁfé{’ﬁﬁﬁ °

TNEE (288) ARAR
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AR e B RR M At

For the year ended 31 December 2010

HE-F—F#+-A=+—HILFF

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. M3 - WERRE

Furniture Computer
Leasehold and and Motor
improvement fixtures equipment vehicles Total
HEYERE HHRRE B RE by
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TEL THEL FEL FEL
Cost: A
At1 January 2009 RZZENE-A—H 1,644 1,217 6,289 1,020 10,230
Additions NE 16 - 154 - 170
Disposal ik (1,346) 617) (2,282) (431) (4,676)
Exchange difference EXEE 22) (14) (49) (52 (137)
At 31 December 2009 and at NZEENF
1 January 2010 TZA=t-HR
—Z-2F-f-H 292 646 4,112 537 5,687
Additions RE - 5 148 - 153
Disposal e (164) - (311) - (475)
Exchange difference EREE 29 41 152 100 322
At 31 December 2010 RZE-2E+ZA=1+—H 157 692 4,101 637 5,587
Accumulated depreciation and Bit{i#R G {ESHE :
impairment losses:
At1 January 2009 RZZENE-A—H 827 961 4,368 859 7,015
Charge for the year AFERY 320 180 620 85 1,206
Disposal hE 913 (595) (2,148) (360) (4,016)
Exchange difference EHES ) (19) (62) (51) (135)
At 31 December 2009 and at R-ZEENE
1 January 2010 TZA=t-HR
—F-TF-H-H 207 531 2,778 533 4,089
Charge for the year TEERR 2 52 482 4 540
Disposal i (105) - (311) - (416)
Exchange difference ERER 29 38 115 100 282
At 31 December 2010 RZE-ZE+ZA=1+—H 153 621 3,064 637 4,475
Net carrying amount: IREE :
As at 31 December 2010 RZZ-Z%F
+-A=1+—H 4 71 1,037 - 1,112
As at 31 December 2009 R_EENF
+-A=1+—H 65 115 1,334 4 1,518

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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18.

—ETEER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BEr—_ZF—FFF+ _HA=+—HIFE

DEVELOPMENT COSTS 17. BHEERE
2010 2009
T —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHBT
Cost: A :
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BEk+Z_A=+—H 1,352 1,352
Accumulated amortisation: Sty -
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BEkt+=-—A=1+—H 1,352 1,352
Net carrying amount: AREEE :
As at 31 December R+—A=+—H - -

The amount represents direct development costs
incurred for the development of “Advanced Distribution
and Transportation Systems” less government grant, and
is amortised on a straight-line basis over three years.

A% IR TR B P B S FOX ME o K A
PREL 2 BEFAERARBTME - I
NBARED = FHH -

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. L EE
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHTT FAT
Cost/valuation: B 51 :
At 1 January and at 31 December R—A—BK
+—-—A=+—H 226,668 226,668
Accumulated amortisation and FEHESERIRERIS ¢
impairment losses:
At 1 January n—AH—H
— Amortisation — BN 35,417 7,083
— Impairment —RE 16,338 -
Amortisation for the year F 30,420 28,334
Impairment for the year FRRE 55,023 16,338
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 137,198 51,755
Net carrying amount: AREEE :
As at 31 December R+—A=+—H 89,470 174,913

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

18.

19.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

The intangible assets represent an exclusive right of usage
of Broadcast of Audio-Video Program On Web Permit
(1= BREEEREM B A ) (the “Permit”) granted
by the holder of the Permit (the “Holder”) to a subsidiary
of the Company under an exclusive agreement entered
into between that subsidiary of the Company and the
Holder. The Permit commenced on 1 October 2007 and
will expire on 30 September 2015. The fair value of the
Permit on the date of acquisition of that subsidiary by the
Company has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out by Messrs. BMI| Appraisals Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected
with the Group. Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and has
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar assets. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of recent transaction prices
for similar assets. The intangible asset is amortised on a
straight-line basis over 8 years.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s intangible assets
were appraised by Messrs. BMI Appraisals Limited and
were carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair market value of RMB76,000,000 (2009:
RMB154,000,000). Further impairment of approximately
HK$55,023,000 (2009: HK$16,338,000) was charged to
the profit and loss.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

18. B EE (&)

BV EERESMBREEREMEHT
E(TFFAREDFHAEATHEADRER
NEIE AR EFA AR L 2R 2
BRMZRAZMBARE L ZFFAIE
AAER_TELFE+A-BMAKG I
RN _ZE—RFNAA=1TBHER 77
ERARPIREZMBARE B2 RF
EREAARENERE B AERMG
AR A BDESR M AR D RETT 2 BB
MmER - BEERFEERIBRER
AEMSEeEs  YNFHBELUEED
HABEEERRBI &R - AETD
SERUEERORHERZMHERRE
MER - BEBERNN\FRNEGR LR

WNZZE—FF+_F=+—8
HRBAFHEBERAAFEAERETLE
EZAFE  THREGTHERKIERIZ
N HEARET76,000000T(ZF
Z hF : AR ¥ 154,000,000 7t ) 7l
8 o #755,023,0008 L (ZTEE NF -
16,338,000/ 7T ) 2 #— HREE R ER
kR o

19. REIB AT 2

The Company
AAT

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Investment in unlisted shares, at cost &R IELETAXD @ IRAEKAK 14,473 14,473
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B B A B FRIE 302,862 301,763
317,335 316,236
Less: Impairment losses B REEE (283,111) (173,259)
34,224 142,977

Amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 32 to consolidated financial statements.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

FEUL/ FEASPH B  B] 2 FRIB AR AR -
R R EEEER o

AREEEWBARZHBERNEAH
R 32 °
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FF+ _HA=+—HIFE

20. & 5 R H{th FEUWARR

The Group The Company
TEE AAT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—T-BF _—TThF ZB-BF _—_TTNF
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAET FHET FAET
Trade receivables B 5 UK - 237 - -
Prepayments, deposits  FE{1 3418 -
and other receivables &2 & KR EfihfE

IRBR SR 11,347 9,568 46 9
11,347 9,805 46 9

The credit terms granted by the Group to customers are
determined on a case-by-case basis with reference to
the size of services contracts, recurrent services provided
to the customers and their credit history. The Group
makes provision for trade receivables based on specific
review. Provision is made against trade receivables after
considering the amount due, creditability of customers
and other qualitative factors.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables of the Group
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

AEEREPRHZEREHRRDZER
BANEE MREEPRHEFLZR
BRERREZEEELRENERE
E o AEERERIB RN E 5 R
FHEE - AREERNEEIHSE -
ERFEEREMEERNRREE SR
BRA MR A -

AEBRBRERRZESRWERZE
BRATTIAT ¢

2010 2009

—E-FF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FiBT

0 to 30 days 0Z30K = -
31 to 60 days 31E60K = -
61 to 90 days 61E90K = -
91 to 150 days 91E150K - -
Over 150 days HiE150K - 9,226
Total trade receivables E S e ER TR = 9,226
Less: Impairment losses B OREETE = 8,989
- 237

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d)

21.

In previous year, trade receivables mainly comprised
amounts receivable from provision of logistics services.
No interest was charged on the trade receivables. The
Group did not hold any collateral over these balances.
The management of the Group monitors the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt and considers
adequate impairment loss has been recognised for
irrecoverable amount, if necessary.

An ageing of the Group’s trade receivables which are
past due but not impaired is as follows:

20. ES R H b BWRRRR (4F

EFZESRREREIZRERERD
AR T U 2 BRAR - % FE 5 R WK
RIITE R - REERER L FHERRE
BEMERD AEEZEEEBERS
HEMNESEHZATKREISRE YRR
EEBMEEN D 2 2 RRHER TSR ER

BmFER) -

AEEEBREREREZE S ERE
KRB DMTEAT -

2010 2009

—E-FF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Over 150 days HBiB150K - 237

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

21. R RINSZEY

The Group
XEEH
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHTT FiBT
Cash and bank balances Re RIRTTEER 6,504 1,863

Bank balances comprise deposits with bank held by the
Group with an original maturity of three months or less
which are interest-bearing at prevailing saving deposits
rates in the PRC is 0.36% (2009: 0.30% to 0.36%) per
annum.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

RUTESEEALAKEREMRIIMA
RZERXEERBEZRITER - HiR
FERITREFRMNEGE - FMNES
0.36%(=ZZT N4 : 0.30%Z£0.36%) °
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ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FF+ _HA=+—HIFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22, B R H it EFERRR
The Group The Company
*£H AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-BE -—TTHhE —B-BF -—TThE

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt THET FHET FAT
Trade payables Z S MR 21,964 21,241 = -

Accruals and other payables  TEI2 & A & EfthfE(+
BRI 52,802 133,439 5,395 87,298

Advance payments from BRI

customers 174 174 - _
Amount due to shareholders — FE{ A& 8 ZI8 - 2,075 - 2,075
74,940 156,929 5,395 89,373

During the year, balance of consideration payable in the
amount of HK$86,350,000 in respect of the acquisition
of a subsidiary in the year 2008 included in accruals
and other payables brought forward from last year has
been settled by the issuance of convertible notes with
equivalent principal amount.

An ageing analysis of the trade payables of the Group
at the end of the reporting period, based on the date of
completion of services provided by the suppliers to the
Group, is as follows:

FR BIEECEREAREMER
ERBREFELEREE S )\FE
W —HMHEBE AR 2 EMNREL®
86,350,000/ T E BRETRIE B2
REFE 2 AR EEEE -

REHERRAASEREHRRB KA
AAEARERBEHR ZE S RMNERR
ZRRE DTN

2010 2009

—§-8F —TTAF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBT FHT

Over 150 days HEiE 150K 21,964 21,241

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR MR A
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE —FT—FFL -H=+—HIFE

23. T[iRfRER

The Group and the Company FEERAAT
HK$’000
FAT
At 1 January 2010 RZE—ETF—H—H -

Liability component of the Convertible Notes FREEITARRER

issued during the year =it 72,004
Imputed interest expense charged HEN SR 1,537
At 31 December 2010 RN-_E—FF+—-_F=+—H 73,541

Pursuant to the Note Instrument Agreements dated
on 11 October 2010, the Company issued convertible
notes at a nominal value of HK$86,349,999 at zero
coupon interest, of which the HK$10,077,044 was
issued to Lucky Peace Limited, a company wholly owed
by the executive director of the Company, Mr. Qiu Yue
and HK$76,272,955 was issued to Asian Dynamics
International Limited, a shareholder of the Company, for a
term of two years.

The convertible notes holders may assign or transfer
the whole or any part of the convertible notes to any
party subject to the Company’s approval. Meanwhile,
the Company may at any time after the issue of the
convertible notes up to and including the maturity date,
redeem the outstanding principal amount of notes by
payment of cash in amount equivalent to the outstanding
principal amount.

The convertible notes holders may at any business day
from the six months after the issuance of the convertible
notes falling on the second anniversary from the date of
issue of convertible notes convert the whole or any part of
the convertible notes into ordinary shares of the Company
of HK$0.1 each at the conversion price of HK$0.218
per conversion share. During the year, no convertible
notes issued were converted into ordinary shares of the
Company.

The convertible notes contain two components: liability
and equity components. The fair values of the liability
component of the convertible notes are measured using
a market interest rate of approximately 9.503% for an
equivalent non-convertible note. The remaining balance,
representing the equity conversion component, is
included in the equity under convertible notes reserve.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

BEBHA-ZZ—ZTF+A+—HZ
ZEEXE®RE  ARAB{TTHEHAE
86,349,998 Tt 2 TR A MR FEIE -
H 110,077,044 78 7T 2 F] #a ik BB 4R
77 ¥ Lucky Peace Limited (AR AT
EFOMEEZERBEOHAR) » B
76,272,9558 7T 7 Al AR RIR BT T
Asian Dynamics International Limited (72

RAPR) - BHME -

ABREZEEFAEANERAEE 2K
B ABRBRRE TEMAL  HLAE
BARBZHUETAEE - R - AR
AR RAT R REEITARRKRERMA
(EzkeRE%B)LMRTEaRE &
BXNEENHARLBASE RSN
B BEMEAH AR REASHE -

AMBRRER B AR REEREET
&6 Az B EAHERFEEREITAS
RAE _EBFA FHAEN @

B RESRLBRN0.2188 T -
SRS E S e R Vo RN/NC]
BREECIVETZEBEE - £ AE
EREETAIRERERABAARAT
EEk -

AMBRREREMERD: BEF DR
By - AIREEBRAERH 2T
ERFABTAREREEZMEEEXD
9.503% =t & ° #& T #B 1 (AN HE 2 48 #2 &P
AR RIEREE T 2 s o
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ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FF{ _A=+—HIFE

24. DEFERRED TAXATION 24, BEBIIA
The major deferred tax liabilities recognised and AEERBAFEERRBZETERER
movements thereon during the current and prior years HEEREEEHNT:
are summarized below:
The Group x&EH
Intangible Convertible
assets notes Total
EREE TREER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL FET TET
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 R=ZZHh&FE—A—H -
and 1 January 2010 ZEENFTZA=T-BR
—ZT-TF-A-H - - -
Charge to profit or loss s ABE 22,368 - 22,368
Recognised directly in equity BRENERTRER - 2,367 2367
At 31 December 2010 RZE—-FF+-f=1—H 22,368 2,367 24,735
The Company AAT]
Convertible
notes
GIE: et
HK$’000
FAT
At 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009 and RZZFZNF—H—R ZZTThF
1 January 2010 +—A=+—HBR-ZE—=F
7)51 El —
Recognised directly in equity BEERNERPER 2,367
At 31 December 2010 R_E-—ZF+_A=+—H 2,367

At the end of the reporting period, deferred tax asset has
not been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses
due to the unpredictability stream of future taxable profits
that will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilized.

R|ERR - AR KREETAR AT BB
BB RRERTOEH - BORFLARE
MIRERERRER IR EE

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—FT—FFL -HA=+—HIFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL 25. [g&
Number of
shares Amount
BirEE &8
HK$'000
TEL
Authorised (Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each): EERA(BREBET T8
Balance at 1 January 2009, 31 December 2009,  R=-ZETHhE—A—0  —TTHE
1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 +ZRA=+—R8 ZZ-2F-F—-HRK
“T-TF+-A=-+—HzE% 2,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid (Ordinary shares of BEEIRARRA(BREECETL
HK$0.1 each): L) -
Balance at 1 January 2009, RZZENE—A-BR
31 December 2009 and “EENFTZA=T8
1 January 2010 “I-TF-R-Rzi% 963,417,986 96,342
Issue of shares by exercise of share options (Notes)  ET{E8E Ik mZ1TR G (FisT) 25,000,000 2,500
Balance at 31 December 2010 W-E-ZF+-A=+—-HBz&R 088,417,986 08,842

Notes: On 29 June 2010, 13,000,000 ordinary shares with

par value of HK$0.10 each were issued as a result of
an exercise of share options granted by the Company
under a specific mandate on 5 September 2007 at a
consideration of HK$3,575,000 at the exercise price
of HK$0.275 per share, of which HK$2,275,000 was
credited to share premium.

On 15 December 2010, 12,000,000 ordinary shares
with par value of HK$0.10 each were issued as a result
of an exercise of share options granted by the Company
under a specific mandate on 5 September 2007 at a
consideration of HK$3,300,000 at the exercise price
of HK$0.275 per share, of which HK$2,100,000 was
credited to share premium.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

BT

MRZZE—ZTFEXA-+HIE  AER
EHEANRERITEE0.2758 T T
AARIRE-ZZTLFALARAER
ZHFRIRE IR 2 AR - LR
A 7317 13,000,000 8% & I% I {E0.10
Bz Tk - {8 /3,575,000
7T H2,275,000/ 7T 2 5 AR
{g °

N-ZB—ZE+-A+HA  BRERK
EHEANRERITEE0.2758 T/ T
AARIRE-ZZTLFALARAER
ZHFRIRE IR 2 AR - LR
A F317 12,000,000 8% & I% I {E0.10
B2 Tk - {8 4A3,300,0007
7T H 12,100,000/ 7T 2 5 AR
{g °
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BE-—FT—FF{ -_A=+—HIFE

=]
)

26. RESERVES 26. fikim
The Group PN
Convertible
notes
Share Capital  Translation reserve Accumulated
premium reserve reserve ik losses Total
RiyEE — EFEHE EifiE  ERGE  RitER Ly
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THER TR THER TEx
At 1 January 2009 RZEZNF-A-H 119,693 26,020 (1832 - (261417) (117,536
Loss for the year TEERE - - - - (48,942) (48,942)
Exchange difference arising on R EGIN EBEE Y
translation of foreign operations ~ [EH Z5 - - 719 - - 719
Total comprehensive income AEERENGEE
for the year - - 719 - (48,942) (48,223)
At31December2009andat  R-EENE
1 January 2010 +-A=t-BRk
—Z-2F-f-H 119,693 26,020 1,113 - (310,359) (165,759)
Loss for the year AEEER - - - - (67,716) (67,716)
Exchange difference arising on &GN EKEE
translation of foreign operations ~ [E 5 £ % - - (2,343) - - (2,343)
Total comprehensive income for ~ KRB 2 B 4%
the year - - (2,343) - 67,716) (70,059)
Issue of shares by exercise of  F{TEEREM
share options ki 4,375 - - - - 4375
Cost on issue of shares BIRMDA ) - - - - ®)
Issue of convertible notes for BATARRZE LA Hk
settlement of balance of BHBLAARRZRE
consideration of interest in b
subsidiary - - - 14,346 - 14,346
Deferred tax liabilties on issue of ~ Z{TAAKBZE 7
convertible notes EiEiaak - - - 2,367) - 2,367)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-B%
+ZH=+-H 124,060 26,020 (3,456) 11,979 (378,075) (219,472)

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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26. RESERVES (Cont’d)

26. f#fE (&)

The Company AT
Convertible
notes
Share  Contributed reserve  Accumulated
premium surplus TR losses Total
BiriE BARS EiEhita RitiE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FEL TAR T THT
At 1 January 2009 RZEENF—A—AH 119,693 13,882 - (190,799) (67,224
Loss for the year TEEBR - - - (10,057) (10,057)
Asat 31 December 2009 andat W=EEAE+-A=1—8
1 January 2009 E-ZEBNE-F-H 119,693 13,882 - (200,856) (67,281)
Loss for the year TEEBR - - - (17,711) (117,711)
Issue of shares by exercise of RITfEBIRER
share options Bk 4,375 - - - 4,375
Costs on issue of shares BRI 2R ) - - _ ©)
Issue of convertible notes for BTARER S
settlement of balance of B ARER
consideration of interest in RELS
subsidiary - - 14,346 - 14,346
Deferred tax liailities on issue of &7 AREE 7
convertiole notes EEHBEE - - (2,367) - (2,367)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-B£+-A=+-H 124,060 13,882 11,979 (318,567) (168,646)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
difference between the nominal value of the ordinary
shares issued by the Company and the net asset value of
a subsidiary acquired through an exchange of shares as
at the date of the Group reorganization.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

ARBZEBABIEARFCD EITER
eEEERNEEEHE A EBRBK
BB ARcEEFECEH -
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26. RESERVES (Cont’d)

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, share premium, capital redemption reserve and
contributed surplus are distributable to shareholders,
subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare
or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of share
premium, capital redemption reserve and contributed
surplus if:

(i) itis, or after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realizable value of its assets would thereby less
than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued
share capital account.

The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued
by the Company and the aggregate of the share capital
and share premium of subsidiaries acquired through
an exchange of shares as at the date of the group
reorganization and the waive of loans by a related party
on 1 February 2004.

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note

4(p).

The convertible notes reserve represents the equity
component of outstanding convertible notes issued
by the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible notes in note
4(i).

At the end of the reporting period, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution to shareholders of the
Company (2009: Nil).

ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FF+ _HA=+—HIFE

26. fitiE (&)

RERSFEQTEUETAN) - Bind
B BABERRFELRESEHKAHDIK
FTRE - HERTIBERT » ARRNE
EIRFRM RS - HARDAE - BXR
BORENESBREEDIK :

) BEEINDRKERBEZEEIHEAE
&8
(i) HEEZAZREERMBEEER

&
HAFEDETRAR AN -

NEBMZ ERFEEIERARRCHEITE
ERzZEHEHERNEEEHE BFEARKRND
RPN ERB AT 2 BRA R DR EL
BUAREEATR_FETENF_F—
BB E5
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BHRAMEEZEN 25 - A AREN
AP IR 2 ERTERREEIE
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27.

28.

SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to a specific mandate granted by the
Company’s shareholders at the Company’s extraordinary
general meeting held on 4 October 2007, the Company
granted 97,840,073 share options entitling the holders of
the share options to subscribe for 97,840,073 ordinary
shares at the exercise price of HK$0.275 per share.

During the year, 25,000,000 ordinary shares were issued
to the holders upon their exercise of share options at
the exercise price of HK$0.275 per share. At the end of
the reporting period, there were outstanding 72,840,073
share options that fall to be exercised at the exercise
price of HK$0.275 per share.

The Company does not currently have any employee
share option scheme in effect.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Balances and transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company,
have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between the
Group and other related parties are as follows:

(i)  Amount due to a director, Xie Xuan, of approximately
HK$6,033,000 (2009: HK$6,602,000) is unsecured,
non-interest bearing and is not due for repayment
within the next twelve months.

(i) Amount due to immediate holding company, Asian
Dynamics International Limited approximately
HK$19,385,000 (2009: HK$15,919,000) is
unsecured, bearing interest at the annual rate of 5%
and is not due for repayment within the next twelve
months.

Interest paid and payable to the immediate holding
company for the year amounted to approximately
HK$939,000 (2009: HK$680,000).

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

27.

28.

RElxE
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28. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. EXEHEANTRS(E)

(Cont’d)

(i) Convertible notes at a nominal value of (i) M{E86,349,999/8 ;L Z T & Al A %
HK$86,349,999 at zero coupon interest, of which the ZyE . Hh10,077,044 8 TE1T T
HK$10,077,044 was issued to Lucky Peace Limited, Lucky Peace Limited ("R &1# 1T
a company wholly owed by the executive director of EEOMEEL2EESN AT -
the Company, Mr. Qiu Yue and HK$76,272,955 was FHN76,272,9557%8 7T Al 31T T Asian
issued to Asian Dynamics International Limited, a Dynamics International Limited (4~ 2
shareholder of the Company. AIRRE) ©

(iv) The remuneration of directors and other members of vy RSESENRFTEEBABRFRAZEH
key management during the year was as follows: BN T

The Group
AERE
2010 2009
—FT-%F —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Short-term benefits EHIRE A 1,980 785
Post-employment benefit EAZET 24 3
2,004 788
The remuneration of directors and key executives in EEEREFZEBABZHMIEH
determined by the remuneration committee having FEEERERZTAZCKERT
regard to the performance of individuals and market GBRIEEETE
trends.
29. COMMITMENTS 29. iR

Operating lease commitments EEHERE

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBERR - AEBEREN A BEHEE

future aggregate minimum lease payments under non- MEANBRINzHEHERIBRRE

cancellable operating leases are as follows: LU
2010 2009
—T-FF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HIK$'000
FHET FAT
Within one year —FR 180 331
In the second to fifth years, inclusive £ -ZFERFE(BFEEEME) 138 10
318 341

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Categories of financial instruments

30. IR

(a) MBIRZER

The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETHEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Financial assets WEEE
Loans and receivables (including B RENKES(EIEEE
cash and cash equivalent) RELEEY)
Trade and other receivables EE P EC A= 11,347 9,805
Cash and bank balances B4 RIBITEEA 6,504 1,863
17,851 11,668
Financial liabilities g asE
Trade and other payables 5 R EMEMER 74,940 156,929
Amount due to a director et — 2B EHE 6,033 6,602
Amount due to immediate holding ~ JEN B A FIHIE
company 19,385 15,919
Convertible notes AT AR R R 73,541 -
173,899 179,450

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

AREe B SR M AT
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30. U ITR(E)

Categories of financial instruments (Cont’d) (a) MBIEZERNE)
The Company
AT
2010 2009
—E—FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FiBT
Financial assets B EE
Loans and receivables (including EFRENK RN
cash and cash equivalent) (BiEHEe RE2ZEY)
Trade and other receivables 5 R H A EWARR 46 9
Amount due from subsidiary FEUH B A B R 34,244 142,977
34,290 142,986
Financial liabilities S aE
Trade and other payables H 5 KR H A ET R 5,395 89,373
Amount due to a director EN—RZESHIE 210 370
Amount due to subsidiaries R NGRS 2,688 8,238
Amount due to immediate holding N B A RO
company 19,873 15,944
Convertible notes AR ER 73,541 -
101,707 113,925
Financial risk management and policies (b) EAFEEIGEIRRBIR
The Group’s major financial instruments include REBZFEZMBIABEESR
trade and other receivables, cash and bank Hab e iR - IRe RIBTTHE R

balances, trade and other payables, amount due to
a director, amount due to ultimate holding company
and convertible notes. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

B o REMBENER - BNESERK
H RN RAREBA R FA KA 8
BRERE - HEFPBTANFEBER
MR FEWEE o T XHIILFERM
TAZHEERR  BREMEERE
ER M ERRE) - EERR MR
BERER - ARMAREELR
REOBR - BEEEEEMEYRE
% - AR AR BT TEE EE
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management and policies (Cont’d)

(i) Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Group have foreign
currency turnover and cost of services and
certain trade receivables, bank deposits,
bank overdraft and trade and other payables
are denominated in foreign currencies other
than the respective functional currencies of
the relevant group entities and thus expose
the Group to foreign currency risk. The
management continuously monitors the foreign

30. AT R(E)
b) HERBEERBEE)

() AEERE
SN ESR
74 2 (B35 F WY B 2 B LA SN
BREBERBERA  MET
ZHEINEER - RITER - R
TEERY S REMERNES
ThAE B E A 72 ARR I
ERELIIN T SN ETE - AR
EFAERYIINERR - TBE
BYNTRELRR TERE
WS YR IME R o

exchange exposure and will consider hedging

foreign currency risk should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s significant
foreign currency denominated monetary

AEBENEAIINEEEEER
B aENRERROEKEE

assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the U

reporting period are as follows:

Assets Liabilities
&aE BfE
2010 2009 2010 2009

—8-B5 —TTNF —B-BF —TTAF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FET TAET FHET THETT

Renminbi

13,411 10,213 67,262 58,909

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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(b) Financial risk management and policies (Cont’d)

ARE B S R M AT
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30. AT R(E)
b) HERBEERBEE)

(i) Market risk (Cont'd) () EEEE)
Sensitivity analysis BREE 2T
The Group is mainly exposed to the effect of NEB T EHmE ARKEENE

fluctuation in Renminbi. The following table
details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in the functional currency
exchange rates of the company against the
Renminbi. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when
reporting foreign currency risk internally to
key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency exchange rates. A
positive number below indicates a decrease in
loss for the year where the functional currencies
of the Group strengthen 5% against Renminbi.
For a 5% weakening of the functional currencies
of the Group against the Renminbi, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the loss,
and the balances below would be negative.

FE o TRFAVAKER R
MEEE LARBMES &
THE T 85% B SRR E D AT ©
5%EMEREIEABEITING
JeR ez ) 7 I B 3 A R R ) SRR
Bix  RREEBHINEE
KNG IR E A T e E
HE - BMRESTRERER
¥ ALASNEEHEM B IAR -
A B RSN TE R #5% = )M
EIERERNFARNETE -
THEHRTHINEEE LA
RETHES % - FEEEAR
Do BEREEMIBEERERA
REAZE% - @B EEESL
FREMERNEE - M NG
HretaH -

Effect on loss for

the year end and
accumulated losses

HERNBER Effect on equity
REtBRzZEE HiEnszwe
2010 2009 2010 2009
—B-BF _—TTNEFE ZB-BF _—TTNEF
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET FHIT FHEIT
Renminbi AR 2,693 2,435 2,693 2,435

THEE (25) ARAF 117
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)

(b) Financial risk management and policies (Cont’d)

(i) Market risk (Cont’d)

Interest rate risks

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to bank balances (see note 21). The
management considers the Group’s exposure
of the bank balances to interest rate risk is not
significant as they have a short maturity period.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
variable-rate bank balances at the end of the
reporting period was the amount outstanding

for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended
31 December 2010 would decrease/increase
by HK$32,000 (decrease/increase by 2009:
HK$8,000). This is mainly attributable to the
Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risk

on its variable-rate bank balances.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

30. AT R(E)
b) HERBEERBEE)

)

HARER ()
FIEmE

AEENRS RN EARER
wRTTAEMR (R ME21) - B
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(SILPSRE- @ S TR RS
R AK

T REE ST RIB R RS
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30. MBI R(E)
(b) MAFSEEERRBIR(Z)
(i) EERGEE

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies (Cont’d)

(i) Credit risk management

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to perform an obligation by the counterparties,
is the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk on trade
and other receivables is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer
rather than industry in which the customers
operate and therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers. At
the end of the reporting period, there was no
significant concentration of credit risk (2009: Nil)
on the total trade receivables of the Group.

In order to minimise the credit risk in relation
to trade receivables, the management of the
Group has strengthened the credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Group consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because
the majority of the counterparties are reputable
banks or banks with high credit-ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

W= TE+=A=+—
A WERBHFAEBIE
BRI & AR BN
BRXHESEEAR - A5
ARBRRE S A D R
B A E RORRTAL(E -

ESHREMBEERME
AEEMESZEERRER
REEPZENFE (MRS
BEZTEIMTE  AMEE
RBRAESETHNERAEEER
& BIBLE B E P i E KRR
REL - RmEHR - AEHE
ZBHRBRR BB BEKX
EEETER(ZZZTNF:
&)

RTEREREEREEZEXN
FERR  AREEERECD N
BIEERME  EEEHLIEM
ERERF  BRSERIBRET
UK EIEEIREER © BLIh
AEEERSEMEMNERE
BRMmEHRA A Y E S5 -
FEAR LR BE I [T RO FRIB 1R L 2
WEREEERE - SLitm
5 AKBEERRAKEN
EERBRERRRE -

nBETNEERBRER @ 1t
TTHRRZ 5 FEERERK
EEFAHEETRIRLA
BEERIRTT -
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 30. AT H(Z)
(b) Financial risk management and policies (Cont’d) (b) MBEMEBREEKZ)
(iii) Liquidity risk management (iii) FHEEREfGEE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the AEBEEEBERBECRERE
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash SEERIN S RIS EEYHIK
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the T BIREEEEERAS
management to finance the Group’s operations WEHIKI - LB AR A B &
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash BAAE O BARESETREHNE
flows. The Group relies on issuing of shares and 2o TR EKAEEAT
borrowings from related parties as a significant HEEEAATHNTFEES K
sources of funding. IR o
The following tables detail the Group and the TREYARER K AN T EF
Company’s remaining contractual maturity for BEENHTALDNEBER
its financial liabilities which are based on the HERKREBF R AANF O HE
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities REXNEEHBEmMAENE
and the earliest date on which the Group and BEEREBERET T&68
the Company can be required to pay. The R B EARS BT o
tables include both interest and principal cash
flows.
The Group *EH
Total
On carrying
demand or Total amount at
less than undiscounted 31.12.2010
3 months More than cashflows R-F-FE
BRERY 1 year KEH +-A=1+-H
biA3ER il Renas AREEE
2010 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-%f TR FHET TET FHET
Trade and other payables B 5 LA ER
BRI 74,940 - 74,940 74,940
Amount due to a director EN—ZEETE - 6,033 6,033 6,033
Amount due to immediate  FENEEIER
holding company NAlFE - 19,385 19,385 19,385
Convertible notes IRRER - 73,541 73,541 73,541
74,940 98,959 173,899 173,899

120 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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30. MBI R(E)
(b) MAFSEEERRBIR(Z)
(iii) HEE2EEEE ()

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies (Cont’d)

(iii) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d)

The Group AEE
Total
On carrying
demand or Total amount at
less than undiscounted 31.12.2009
3 months More than cashflows RZZETNF
RER 1 year xR +ZA=1+—-H
PR3EA HiR—F Renes REBE
2009 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ETNF THET THT TET TET
Trade and other payables Bk
HA (TR 156,929 - 156,929 156,929
Amount due to a director EM—RESTIE - 6,602 6,602 6,602
Amount due to immediate [ERTEZER AR
holding company 2B - 15,919 15,919 15,919
156,929 22,521 179,450 179,450
The Company AAT
Total
On carrying
demand or Total amount at
less than undiscounted 31.12.2010
3 months More than cashflows RZT-FTE
BEX 1year KB +=A=t+-8
birsfER @il Renes ARE41{E
—E-Bf HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
2010 TERT TiERT TER THET
Trade and other payable g%
HAERHRR 5,395 - 5,395 5,395
Amount due to a director EN—ZEETE - 210 210 210
Amount due to subsidiaries  ERHTB AR FE 2,688 - 2,688 2,688
Amount due to immediate  EREEZERAF
holding company EQE] - 19,873 19,873 19,873
Convertible notes EElES - 73,541 73,541 73,541
8,083 93,624 101,707 101,707

TMEE (2% BRATF
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d)
(b) Financial risk management and policies (Cont’d)

(iii) Liquidity risk management (Cont’d)

30. AT R(E)
b) HERBEERBEE)
(i) REELEREE ()

The Company AAT
Total
carrying
demand or Total amount at
less than undiscounted 31.12.2009
3 months More than cashflows RZBFRLE
BREX 1 year KR +=HA=t+-H
bir3fER -5 RemRaE ARE4(E
k- -3 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
2009 7T FHET Fi#ET THET
Trade and other payables Z25K
HA IR - 89,373 89,373
Amount due to a director EN—ZEETE 370 370 370
Amount due to subsidiaries  ERIBEARIFUE - 8,238 8,238
Amount due to immediate TERN E IR AR
holding company TIE - 15,944 15,944 15,944
16,314 113,925 113,925
(c) Fair value AFEE
The fair values of financial assets and financial HHREERMBEENRATFERT
liabilities are determined as follows: HIEEEE:

e  The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions
and traded in active markets are determined
with reference to the quoted market bid and ask
prices respectively; and

e The fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices
from observable current market transactions.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Cont’d) 30. AT H(Z)
(c) Fair value (Cont’d) (c) AFEHE)
Except as detailed in the following table, the directors BRI RFILEIN  EERAER
consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets Bk PR B S AR AR B
and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in MBEELMBRENREE
the financial statements approximate their fair values: BMENERSE
2010 2009
—g-%5 “BEAE
Carrying Carrying
amount Fair value amount Fair value
AREE AFE BHEE ~YE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHET TET TET
Convertible notes (Note) ARREE (M) 73,541 84,493 - -
Note: The fair value of the liability component of Mg . ATRREERAEIND 2 R FED
convertible bonds has been calculated by using e FRE R 4 F1| % 9.508% + I 4%
effective interest rate of 9.503% per annum with SEBFBIINERSREREER
reference to the Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note PR mETE o

and credit risk margin.

31. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 31. EXEHE

The Group manages its capital structure and makes AEEETREHEREE - WEAEBLER
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic M2 EHHEREBELRAE - R
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, PR EREE  AAREEN G AL
the directors of the Company may adjust the dividend IRHFREZBREHE - RERRER
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders RBETHBRD  NBE_T-FTFR=
and issue of new shares. No changes were made in the FEAFT AT -BUEMEFE
objectives, policies or processes during the years ended N ARER - BUORSUR MR T8 o

31 December 2010 and 2009.

TEE (3R BRAT 123
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31. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

31.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net
debt includes trade and other payables, loan from third
party and shareholders, less cash and cash equivalents,
and excludes discontinued operations. Capital includes
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. The

EXEE(E)

AEEFNBEEABLRREREAR
R RBEFERINEEARAME BF
H-REFEEREIRNEMENE
R RZEBREREFR  BREZLRE
FEY LT EERLIELEER - EX
BRARREBAREER - RREH

gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period were as RZAERBLFMT:
follows:
GROUP
A%
2010 2009
—B-BE  —TEIAS
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THER FHT
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAEIRK 74,940 156,929
Amount due to a director e —ZEERIE 6,033 6,602
Amount due to immediate holding FET R A T E
company 19,385 15,919
Convertible notes MR EE 73,541 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W R RIREEEY (6,504) (1,863)
Net debt =R 167,395 177,587

Equity/(deficit) attributable to:

THIAT GRS (FRF) -

— owners of the company - RQEHEE A (120,630) (69,417)
— non-controlling interests — JEIERE RS 30,213 77,840
Total (deficit)/capital BORT) /AR (90,417) 8,423
Capital and net debt BEXREETRE 76,978 186,010
Gearing ratio BEAGL X 217.46% 95.47%

124 Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited
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32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 32. FEMEBAT
Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 RZE—ZEFR_FEEANF+ A
December 2010 and 2009 are as follow: =+t—H ARRZMBRRFBNOT :

Issuedand  Proportion of interest
fully paid  held by the Company

Place of share capital/ FATHEZ
incorporation/ registered RSB
operation capital
Name R4l Form of legal entity BETRYE  Directly Indirectly Principal activities
&8 GEn EABRER kx/EREx Ef BE TEEH
Asian Information Resources The British Virgin International business US$200 100% - Investment holding
(BVI) Limited Islands company 200%T RERER
ERRXAS L
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$11,228,290 - 100% Provision of on-line content
Limited B BREERA 11,228,200% 7T and related technical
DMAEERAR services, information
technology solutions and
consultancy services and
e-commerce investments
A F AR
R R -
BARERARER
FARBRETERRE
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2 - 100% Provision of treasury functions
Finance Limited BE BREAAT 28T to group companies
REBRRIRMESRE
Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$2 - 100% Provision of administration
Investment Limited Bk AREARF 28T services to group
companies

REBRERETHRE

Asian Information Resources Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100% Provision of on-line content
Marketing Limited B EREFAR 10,000/ 7T and related technical
services

BB LA RAEBRITR

Biztech Company Limited Hong Kong Limited liability HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
BERRARAR B EREALT 10,0007 REER
Ever-OK International Forwarding - The PRC Limited liability RMB17,300,000 - 60% Provision of air and ocean
Co., Ltd. h EREFAR ARE freight services
IHERERGEERAT 17,300,007 REUTERGERS
Vega International Group Ltd The British Virgin International business US$5 100% - Provision of corporate
Islands company 55T finance and management
RERAEE SN consultancy services
RO RRE RER ARG
Vega Capital Ltd. The PRC Limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100% Provision of corporate
ENEZREBRERAR i BREAAT AR® finance and management
10,000,0007c consultancy services

RECEBEREERARE

TNEE (28%) ARAR
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32. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 32.

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31
December 2010 and 2009 are as follow:

EEMBAS(E)
R-Z-BFER-FEAFT A
=t+—8 ARAZEBHBRAHE
T

Issued and  Proportion of interest
fully paid  held by the Company
Place of share capital/ FATHREZ
incorporation/ registered TERRLL B
operation capital
Name Ba e Formoflegalentity =~ E3{7TRERE  Directly Indirectly Principal activities
b4 EEE INCL 1A k& /EREx HE B TEEH
Guangzhou Wavecom The PRC Limited liability RMB500,000 - 100% Investment holding
Communications and e BREEAH AR#500,00070 REER
Advertising limited
BENERERRSERAR
South Pearl Limited 1%/ 83% The PRC Limited liability RMB20,000,000 - 55% Provision of intemet protocol
BERBARRR i BREMAF AR¥E television services
20,000,0007C REGHABRRY
33. LITIGATION 33. zfEk

On 27 April 2010, Union Resources Educational
Development (Yanjiao) Company Limited (“UREDY”),
as the first plaintiff, and Union Resources (Educational
Development) Limited (“UR”), as the second plaintiff
(the “Plaintiffs”), initiated legal proceedings against the
Company, as the first defendant, and four other persons,
being the second to fifth defendants, by way of the issue
of a Writ of Summons in the High Court of Hong Kong
under action number HCA589 of 2010 (the “Writ of
Summons”). For further details of the Writ of Summons
and the indorsement of claim as it pertains to the
Company, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 28 April 2010, and 3 May 2010.

As stated in the Company’s announcement dated 3
May 2010, the Board is given to understand that in the
event that the Plaintiffs prosecute the claims stated in the
Writ of Summons, then the Plaintiffs will claim they are
entitled to an award of specific damages in the sum of
RMB9,744,000.

The Board is of the view that in the event that the Plaintiffs
are successful in proving the relevant claims against the
Company, and that if the possible specific damages of
RMB9,744,000, and a possible claim for UREDY’s and
UR’s legal costs are awarded against the Company, that
such awards will not have a material adverse impact on
the Group’s financial position, in the long term. Provision
for the Company’s own legal costs of approximately
HK$2,500,000 has been made in the financial statements
in this respect.

Asian Capital Resources (Holdings) Limited

R-ZE—TEOA=-++H BEER
HAE (H2B)ERAR(THEIUREDY]
EEE—RENRBEER(HBEER)
ERAF(THEIUR] EABE_REA)
[(BREAD  BBUAZRMAZN])
AEEBSFERGRARR: —2—%
F(HCA 589)) ' HARFI(1EAE—HE)
L HEMALT(EAE_EFRAHEE)
BHEREFA - BRAEZERLERES
LRGN E M ME— 2B B2EA
RAR_E—ZFTFWA-_+NBE-F
—EEFR=HTIEEZ M-

BMARRRRN - FE—FFRHA=H T
ZRfePrE EEEHE 0 MREAE
TARRFAEZHER  REAKSERE
MEAREHEETREREARARY
9,744,0007T °

EEeRE EREAHARG IR
2 BEREER N ERRE - BAAQ A
WHESNEBETEEREARE
9,744,0007T X UREDY RURA gL =18 2
HABR  BEFAREMEITEY
AEBNTEMRREXEATFZE -
ARARERGEFEHREPRART 2
SRERE A 492,500,000 TT VB ©
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34.

35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LITIGATION (Cont’d)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is involved
in any litigation or claim of material importance and there is
no litigation or claim of material importance known to the
Board to be pending or threatened against the Company
or any of its subsidiaries.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@ On 9 February 2011, a convertible notes holder,
converted the convertible notes in the principal
amount of HK$18,857,000 into 86,500,000 ordinary
shares of the Company at the conversion price of
HK$0.218 per share.

(b) On 11 February 2011, the Eastern magistrates’
Court of Hong Kong issued the Five Summonses
to the Company. Each of them alleges that the
Company, contrary to sections 384(1) and 384(6)
of the Securities and Future Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, did provide to the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited a copy of
an announcement containing information which was
false or misleading in a material particular, and the
Company knew or was reckless as to whether the
information was false or misleading, as particularized
in each of the Five Summonses. Details please refer
to the announcement dated 16 February 2011.

The Board is of the view that in the event that
the Company is convicted of any or all of the five
summonses, such conviction(s) will not have a
material adverse impact on the Group’s financial
position.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of
Directors on 30 March 2011.

33.

34.

35.

ARE B S R M AT
For the year ended 31 December 2010
BE—F—FF+ _HA=+—HIFE

GG

BEXHBEEEN BE-ET—Z
TA=+—8  ARFREETHE
RABGESREMEAFARSE - 8
BEFEHMA - ADRRMHEBAF
YEREMAREIRZEE 2 EAFDK

=B -

RENEEENEIER

@ M-TZE——FE-ANH —ZAk
REEFEARLIRESRR0218E
TR 4 %818,857,000%8 7T 2 A #4
% 2245 3 #2 86,500,000 % A& A &)
T

) W_ZB——F-AF+—8 FHEHR
BRHAERRANGZELE RS
T ZAREENEARTERSE
EIEADESTIER SR EEIENE
384(1) %384(6) {5 * MBEBHAR
SHBRAGRE—DAMEIZ -
ERHEEZELIBEBRARE
BRIEER  MARBME LE
BEZEFBERSARER D -
FEELMENESREEE BE
B EREK D - BEFBERIEHE
MEBERE —_E——F - A+XH
FRYERME ©

E5eRA AEARRRWETER
RER(E AR 2 FRKL - A
BT HAKE 2 M BN
BREATHNEE -

MBmRZME
WEFAMBRRER - F——F= 7
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